

 AGENDA FOR THE 


 
 


CITY OF PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION  
REGULAR MEETING  


 
Monday, May 22, 2023 


7:00 P.M.  
 Via Zoom Videoconference and In Person 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 


 
WAYS TO WATCH THE MEETING 


• IN PERSON. Attendance at the Pinole City Council Chambers (2131 Pear St). 


• LIVE ON CHANNEL 26. The Community TV Channel 26 schedule is published on the 
City’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us. The meeting can be viewed again as a retelecast 
on Channel 26. 


• VIDEO-STREAMED LIVE ON THE CITY’S WEBSITE, www.ci.pinole.ca.us. and remain 
archived on the site for five (5) years. 


• ZOOM VIDEOCONFERENCE. Zoom details are included below. 


• If none of these options are available to you, or you need assistance with public comment, 
please contact Planning Manager David Hanham at (510) 724-8912 or 
dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us. 


HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS 


In Person:  


Attend meeting at the Pinole City Council Chambers, fill out a yellow public comment card and 
submit it to the Planning Manager. 


Via Zoom: 


Members of the public may submit a live remote public comment via Zoom video conferencing. 
Download the Zoom mobile app from the Apple Appstore or Google Play. If you are using a 
desktop computer, you can test your connection to Zoom by clicking here. Zoom also allows you 
to join the meeting by phone. 


From a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android:     


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86505375301  


  OR 


https://zoom.us/join 


Webinar ID: 865 0537 5301 


By phone:   +1 (669) 900-6833  or  +1 (253) 215-8782  or  +1 (346) 248-7799    


• Speakers will be asked to provide their name and city of residence, although 
providing this is not required for participation. 


• Each speaker will be afforded up to 5 minutes to speak. 
• Speakers will be muted until their opportunity to provide public comment. 



http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

mailto:dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us

https://www.zoom.us/join

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86505375301

https://zoom.us/join





PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
May 22, 2023  PAGE 2 
 
When the Chair opens the comment period for the item you wish to speak on, please use the 
“raise hand” feature (or press *9 if connecting via telephone) which will alert staff that you have a 
comment to provide. Once you have been identified to speak, please check to make sure you 
have unmuted yourself in the videoconference application (or press *6 if connecting via 
telephone). 
 
WRITTEN COMMENTS 
Please submit public comments to Planning Staff before the meeting via email to 
dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us. Please include your full name, city of residence and agenda item you 
are commenting on. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need special assistance to 
participate in a City meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the Development Services Department at (510) 
724-8912.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting or time when services are needed 
will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide 
accessibility to the meeting or service. 
 


 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION:  
 


Persons wishing to speak on an item listed on the Agenda may do so when the Chair asks for 
comments in favor of or in opposition to the item under consideration. After all of those persons 
wishing to speak have done so, the hearing will be closed and the matter will be discussed 
amongst the Commission prior to rendering a decision.  
 
Any person may appeal an action of the Planning Commission or of the Planning Manager by 
filing an appeal with the City Clerk, in writing, within ten (10) days of such action.  Following a 
Public Hearing, the City Council may act to confirm, modify or reverse the action of the Planning 
Commission and the Planning Commission may act to confirm, modify, or reverse the action of 
the Planning Manager. The cost to appeal a decision is $500 and a minimum $2,500 deposit fee.  
 
Note: If you challenge a decision of the Commission regarding a project in court, you may be 
limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing or in writing 
delivered to the City of Pinole at, or prior to, the public hearing.  
 


A. CALL TO ORDER  
 
 
B1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
B2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT: Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the Ohlone 


people, who are the traditional custodians of this land. We pay our respects to the Ohlone 
elders, past, present, and future, who call this place, Ohlone Land, the land that Pinole 
sits upon, their home. We are proud to continue their tradition of coming together and 
growing as a community. We thank the Ohlone community for their stewardship and 
support, and we look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue our relationship of 
mutual respect and understanding. 


 
B3. ROLL CALL 



mailto:dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us





PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
May 22, 2023  PAGE 3 
 
 
C. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD: 
 


The public may address the Planning Commission on items that are within its jurisdiction 
and not otherwise listed on the agenda.  Planning Commissioners may discuss the matter 
brought to their attention, but by State law (Ralph M. Brown Act), action must be deferred 
to a future meeting.  Time allowed: five (5) minutes each. 


 
 
D. MEETING MINUTES: 
 


1. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from May 8, 2023 
 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 


At the beginning of an item, the Chair will read the description of that item as stated on 
the Agenda. The City Staff will then give a brief presentation of the proposed project. The 
Commission may then ask Staff questions about the item.  


 
For those items listed as Public Hearings, the Chair will open the public hearing and ask 
the applicant if they wish to make a presentation. Those persons in favor of the project will 
then be given an opportunity to speak followed by those who are opposed to the project. 
The applicant will then be given an opportunity for rebuttal.  


 
The Public Hearing will then be closed and the Commission may discuss the item amongst 
themselves and ask questions of Staff. The Commission will then vote to approve, deny, 
approve in a modified form, or continue the matter to a later date for a decision. The Chair 
will announce the Commission's decision and advise the audience of the appeal 
procedure. 


 
Note: No Public Hearings will begin after 11:00 p.m. Items still remaining on the 
agenda after 11:00 p.m. will be held over to the next meeting. 


 
 


1. Minor Subdivision (PL23-0001 & MS652-23) 2801 Pinole Valley Road Lot Split 
 


Request:  Consideration of a lot split request to modify lot lines on the approximately 
1.74 acre parcel to split the existing parcel into two parcels of approximately 
0.27 acres and 1.46 acres. The project qualifies for a CEQA exemption 
under CEQA Guidelines Section 15315. 


 
 Applicant:  Brian Baniqued, Pinole Valley Partners LLC 
  2801 Pinole Valley Road 
  Pinole, CA 94564 
 
Location:  2801 Pinole Valley Road (APN: 360-010-029) 
 
Planner:  Justin Shiu 


 
 


 







PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
May 22, 2023  PAGE 4 
 
F. OLD BUSINESS:  
 
 None 
 
 
G. NEW BUSINESS:  
 


1. Review of Proposed Preliminary Capital Improvement Plan for Consistency with the 
General Plan 
 
Request:  Review of the Proposed Preliminary Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for 


FY 2023-2024 through 2027-2028 for Consistency with the General Plan 
 


Project Staff: Misha Kaur 
 
 


H. CITY PLANNER'S/COMMISSIONER'S REPORT: 
 
 
 
I. COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
 


 
J. NEXT MEETING(S):  
 


Planning Commission Regular Meeting, June 12, 2023 at 7:00PM  
 
 


K. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
 
POSTED: May 18, 2023 
 
 
_________________________________ 
David Hanham 
Planning Manager 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     1 


DRAFT 1 


 2 


MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 3 


PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION 4 


 5 


May 8, 2023   6 


 7 


THIS MEETING WAS HELD IN A HYBRID FORMAT  8 


BOTH IN-PERSON AND ZOOM TELECONFERENCE  9 


         10 


A. CALL TO ORDER:     11 


 12 


The Planning Commission meeting was called to order by Vice Chairperson Martinez at 7:08 13 


p.m. with the agenda rearranged with Item B4, Planning Commission Organization, Oath of 14 


Office heard prior to Roll Call.    15 


 16 


B4. PLANNING COMMISSION ORGANIZATION  17 


 18 


1. Oath of Office  19 


 20 


Planning Manager David Hanham presented the Oath of Office to new Planning 21 


Commissioners John Bender, Christy Lam-Julian, and Gabriel Sandoval.     22 


 23 


B1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 24 


 25 


B2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the 26 


Ohlone people, who are the traditional custodians of this land.  We pay our respects to 27 


the Ohlone elders, past, present and future, who call this place, Ohlone Land, the land 28 


that Pinole sits upon, their home.  We are proud to continue their tradition of coming 29 


together and growing as a community.  We thank the Ohlone community for their 30 


stewardship and support, and we look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue 31 


our relationship of mutual respect and understanding. 32 


 33 


B3. ROLL CALL  34 


 35 


Commissioners Present: Bender, Benzuly, Lam-Julian, Menis, Sandoval, Vice 36 


Chairperson Martinez 37 


      38 


Commissioners Excused:   Banuelos  39 


 40 


Staff Present:   David Hanham, Planning Manager   41 


    Alex Mog, Assistant City Attorney   42 


    Justin Shiu, Contract Planner  43 


 44 


C. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD 45 


 46 


Members of the public attempted to call into the meeting but due to technical difficulties 47 


with the Zoom feed the Planning Commission took a brief recess at 7:20 p.m. to allow 48 


Pinole Community Television (PCTV) to resolve the issue.    49 


 50 


ITEM D1 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     2 


The Planning Commission meeting reconvened at 7:32 p.m. with all Planning 1 


Commissioners present with the exception of Commissioner Banuelos.   2 


 3 


Anthony Vossbrink, Pinole, thanked the Vice-Chair for the thorough and detailed 4 


introduction at the start of the meeting and welcomed new Planning Commissioners.  He 5 


pointed out that no telephone number had been posted on Zoom for the meeting making 6 


it difficult for the public to participate, and even though he had been informed that PCTV’s 7 


equipment did not have the capability to provide that information, he suggested an attempt 8 


should be made to provide the information and the needed equipment needed to be 9 


requisitioned for PCTV.   10 


 11 


Mr. Vossbrink referenced the land acknowledgement on the meeting agenda and asked 12 


whether there was any dedicated trail, park or open space within the City of Pinole with 13 


the Ohlone name.  He suggested the City of Pinole should adopt the Ohlone Trail 14 


alongside Pinole Creek behind the bowling alley or the dog park on Adobe Road after 15 


cleaning up debris from the area.  He explained that while former staff had stated the area 16 


would be identified on a priority list for needed maintenance that had never been done.  In 17 


addition, a number of City street lights were in need of repair or were completely out along 18 


San Pablo Avenue and Pinole Valley Road to Henry Avenue.   19 


 20 


 The Planning Commission returned to the remaining items under Item B4.  21 


 22 


B4. PLANNING COMMISSION ORGANIZATION  23 


 24 


2. Selection of Chair, Vice-Chair and the Ad Hoc Planning Commission Subcommittee 25 


for 2023/24  26 


 27 


Commissioner Menis reported on ex parté communications and stated he had past 28 


discussions with the Vice Chairperson at which time he had expressed his willingness to 29 


serve as Chair or Vice-Chair of the Planning Commission.   He also had a conversation with 30 


Irma Ruport whose opinion was that Commissioner Bender would be a great Chair.  He had 31 


also sent out notices of the meeting to his email list.   32 


 33 


MOTION with a Roll Call vote to Select Adam Benzuly as Chair and Rafael Menis as Vice-34 


Chair of the Planning Commission for 2023/24.     35 


    36 


 MOTION:  Martinez  SECONDED:  Bender              APPROVED:  6-037 


               ABSENT:  Banuelos  38 


  39 


MOTION with a Roll Call vote to Select Commissioners Bender, Martinez and Menis to serve 40 


on the Ad-Hoc Planning Commission Subcommittee for 2023/24.   41 


    42 


 MOTION:  Benzuly  SECONDED:  Lam-Julian              APPROVED:  6-043 


               ABSENT:  Banuelos  44 


 45 


Chairperson Benzuly Chaired the meeting at this time.   46 


 47 


3. Planning Commission Orientation and Presentation  48 


 49 


 50 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     3 


Assistant City Attorney Alex Mog provided a PowerPoint presentation on the Brown Act, role 1 


of the Planning Commission and the purpose of the most common use permits including a 2 


Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and Site Development Review.  He also highlighted fair and 3 


due processes and welcomed any questions from the Planning Commission.   4 


 5 


PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  6 


 7 


Anthony Vossbrink, Pinole, asked whether newly-elected Council members and appointed 8 


Planning Commissioners were required to attend a formal workshop on the Brown Act as 9 


mandated by Contra Costa County or the State of California.  He added that pursuant to the 10 


Brown Act, the public had the right to comment and Planning Commissioners also had the 11 


right to redirect comments and take action on any comments, as had been done in the past, 12 


which process he would like to see continued.  He asked that the City Manager and City 13 


Attorney reiterate that process and provide a response.  14 


 15 


Assistant City Attorney Mog explained that staff would not proactively respond to comments 16 


from members of the public but the Planning Commission may always request a response.   17 


He recommended such a request be made after everyone had the opportunity to comment.  18 


He also reported Planning Commissioners and City Council members were required to take 19 


a two-hour ethics course every two years after assuming office.   20 


 21 


PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  22 


 23 


D. MEETING MINUTES 24 


 25 


1. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from April 24, 2023  26 


 27 


MOTION with a Roll Call vote to approve the Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from 28 


April 24, 2023, as shown.     29 


    30 


 MOTION:  Menis  SECONDED:  Martinez          APPROVED:  5-0-231 


                ABSTAIN:  Bender 32 


          ABSENT:  Banuelos 33 


  34 


 E. PUBLIC HEARINGS 35 


 36 


1. Comprehensive Design Review DR21-19, Conditional Use Permit 37 


CUP23-03, and Parcel Map PM23-01 – Pinole Shores Phase II 38 


 39 


Request:    Consideration of a Comprehensive Design Review, 40 


Conditional Use Permit, and Parcel Map request to develop a 41 


project consisting of construction of two tilt up wholesale 42 


distribution and warehouse buildings with accessory office 43 


space for a total of 117,943 square feet of warehouse and 44 


approximately 10,000 square feet of office floor area, as well 45 


as site preparation of the vacant 7.37-acre site.  The facility 46 


will include loading docks, exterior parking and circulation, 47 


and stormwater treatment facilities.  The project qualifies for 48 


CEQA streamlining and exemptions under CEQA Guidelines 49 


Sections 15168 and 15183.   50 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     4 


  Applicant:   Herdman Architecture + Design  1 


    16201 Scientific Way 2 


    Irvine, CA 92618  3 


  4 


Location: 830-848 San Pablo Avenue (APN: 402-230-015, 402-230-5 


016, 402-230-017, 402-230-018 and 402-230-020) 6 


 7 


  Planner: David Hanham  8 


 9 


Planning Manager Hanham provided an extensive PowerPoint presentation of the May 8, 10 


2023 staff report, and recommended the Planning Commission adopt Resolution 23-04, 11 


approving the Comprehensive Design Review, Conditional Use Permit, Parcel Map and 12 


California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) exemption for the Pinole Shores II Project at 13 


830-848 San Pablo Avenue (DR21-19/PL21-0090), subject to the conditions of approval 14 


contained in Exhibit A to the staff report.    15 


 16 


Assistant City Attorney Mog identified an amendment to the last BE IT FURTHER 17 


RESOLVED clause as shown on Page 2 of Attachment A, Resolution 23-04, which had been 18 


modified to read:   19 


 20 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole 21 


hereby approves DR-21-19, CUP 23-03 for Wholesale Distribution and a Parking 22 


Reduction to provide only 147 parking spaces, and PM 23-01 for the parcel map 23 


attached hereto as Exhibit B to this resolution and incorporated herein, subject to the 24 


Conditions of Approval, applicable to the entire Project, attached as Exhibit A to this 25 


Resolution and incorporated herein, and hereby makes the following findings, for the 26 


reasons provided in the Planning Commission Staff Report dated May 8, 2023 and 27 


incorporated by reference:   28 


 29 


Commissioner Martinez reported on ex parté communications he had with Commissioner 30 


Menis regarding the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and with incoming Commissioner 31 


Lam-Julian regarding the traffic analysis and semi-truck traffic noise in/out of the site.   32 


 33 


Commissioner Menis confirmed he had ex parté communications with Commissioner 34 


Martinez regarding potential different uses for the site.     35 


 36 


Responding to Commission questions, Mr. Mog, Mr. Hanham, and Oliva Ervin, 37 


Environmental Principal Planner, M-Group, clarified the following:    38 


 39 


• Acknowledged a request for renderings with views of what the building would look 40 


like from different nearby streets in the community to show the height of the project 41 


from nearby high-density residential housing and views from San Francisco Bay.  42 


 43 


• With respect to Attachment C, Plan Set A5, Site Photos, acknowledged a request to 44 


maintain existing overgrown eucalyptus trees that were part of the parcel due to 45 


wildfire concerns.  None of the trees had been proposed for removal at this time with 46 


the area to remain open space for the project. The proposed landscaping would be 47 


another 10 to 15 feet inward and be tree lined where the walkway was located, with 48 


additional trees on the outside of the existing open space area and with the buildings 49 


to be obstructed from view as the trees matured.  50 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     5 


• Given how the buildings would be sited with one building about six feet lower and 1 


with the larger building dropped down with the buildings tucked back from San Pablo 2 


Avenue, the landscaping over time should shield the appearance of the buildings on 3 


both sides from nearby residences as the landscaping matured.  Pinole Shores I and 4 


II included maintenance provisions for the property with both Pinole Shores Business 5 


Park Association and GRP Pinole Shores, LLC, owner/developer responsible.  6 


Clarified most of the woodlands were located on the Pinole Shores I property.   7 
 8 


• Railroad tracks separated the Bay Trail and the project was required to be at least 50 9 


feet off of the centerline of the railroad tracks plus an additional setback.  The total 10 


parcel size was 7.37 acres; both buildings would be one-story and 43 feet in height, 11 


and the total building square footage would be 117,943 square feet.  Building One 12 


would be 37,482 square feet and Building Two 80,461 square feet in size.  The 13 


buildings would have no effect on the Bay Trail.   14 
 15 


• Reiterated Pinole Shores I and II included maintenance provisions for the property 16 


and clarified that when the original project had been for all four projects, the property 17 


owner and the City had created a Development Agreement (DA) for the entire 18 


property.   Much of the language in that DA had been included in the current DA for 19 


the new developer who would be responsible, along with the other Light Industrial 20 


users that could be in the second set of two industrial buildings, who would all be 21 


included in the maintenance provisions that would outline who was responsible for 22 


what. 23 
 24 


• Acknowledged the question of whether it was possible to install infrastructure for 25 


electric vehicle (EV) charging stations in all loading bays to make them zero 26 


emission/EV charging station ready to be clarified by the applicant.   27 
 28 


• The end user type would be established by the permit for wholesale distributor but if 29 


there were specific requirements the Planning Commission wanted to see pertaining 30 


to a specific use, such as hours of operation that could be added to the conditions of 31 


approval.     32 
 33 


• Clarified Attachment C, Plan Set A1.1 showed a ramp for the pedestrian access 34 


across the way to Building D (Pinole Shores I), which offered an idea of the property 35 


line/phase line and where the existing building started. 36 
 37 


• Parking Reduction Findings, as shown on Pages 21 and 22 of the May 8, 2023 staff 38 


report were again highlighted, specifically Section 17.48.060(c) which read: The site 39 


plan is consistent with the objectives of the zoning district and incorporates 40 


features such as unobtrusive off-street parking placed below the ground level of 41 


the project with commercial uses above or enclosed parking on the ground floor.  42 


In this case, the project was “providing unobtrusive off-street parking through other 43 


means” by tucking it behind the building so it was not visible from San Pablo 44 


Avenue.   45 
 46 


 47 


 48 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     6 


• Acknowledged Commissioner Menis had a number of questions he had raised with 1 


staff prior to the meeting related to Attachment A, Exhibit A, Conditions of Approval, 2 


who had also identified typographical questions and requests for clarification on 3 


Conditions 24, 99, 114,and 116. (At this time, Commissioner Menis highlighted each 4 


of the questions he had with each of the conditions which staff had clarified prior to 5 


the meeting). 6 
 7 


• Attachment B, Pinole Shores II, Environmental Checklist, Page 10 of the CEQA 8 


Analysis, the reference to Site preparation would initiate with grading to remove 9 


ruderal vegetation, level, and compact the site. Grading and import of fill soils to 10 


prepare the project site for Phase 2 occurred during the 2006 development of 11 


Phase 1 of the Pinole Shores Business Park, and a discussion on Page 2 of 68 of 12 


Appendix D-1, Report of Testing and Observation During Super Pad Grading 13 


Operations, which stated The site is proposed to be filled with import soils from the 14 


Pinole Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant Upgrade Project and rough graded, 15 


provide two super pads for future commercial development. Staff clarified there 16 


had been fill from the Pinole Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant site, about 17 


twelve feet of soil imported from the Plant and imported to the site, with the City 18 


having done all of the grading, all of which had been reviewed and found to be 19 


satisfactory by the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB).  The past 20 


import of soil had been done and no further modification was required or needed 21 


in the Environmental Impact Report (EIR).   22 
 23 


• Attachment B, Pinole Shores, Environmental Checklist,  Page 26, 4.1(a) (Scenic 24 


Vistas) No Substantial Change Relative to the 2010 FEIR, as compared to 25 


Attachment C, Plan Set A5, and clarified the consistency analysis had stated the 26 


findings of the EIR.  “Scenic vistas” was a term of art, with the City having made a 27 


determination on the scenic vistas area, although the EIR had stated there were no 28 


designated scenic vistas but that did not mean there were no lovely view corridors or 29 


views.  From an environmental perspective, there was no acknowledgment in the EIR 30 


adopted for the General Plan that there were “designated” scenic vistas. Given the 31 


location of the project site and its visibility, it had been concluded there were no 32 


substantial changes relative to the findings in the EIR.   33 
 34 


• Attachment B, Pinole Shores, Environmental Checklist, Phase 1 Environmental Site 35 


Assessment, Page 59, staff was unaware of any federal, state or county level 36 


funding/grants to address contaminated soil and the clean-up parcels as it related to 37 


Controlled Recognized Environmental Conditions (CRECs).   38 
 39 


• Appendix E-1, Soil Management Plan 2002 had been prepared for the former 40 


Anthony’s Auto Wrecking property, specifically Figure 2 as shown, and clarified 41 


current staff had not been present when original meetings had been held with the 42 


RWQCB.  The Soils Management Plan had been a result of meetings and 43 


negotiations between the City and the original owner of the Pinole Shores Project. 44 


The subject project would still fall under the Soils Management Plan but because 45 


prohibited uses were not being built, as shown on Page 68, it was a non-issue.    46 
 47 


• The applicant contended the project would not impede on any of the native soil and 48 


the entire project would be within the fill area of the property.   49 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     7 


The restricted covenants in the Soil Management Plan covered the current site, these 1 


covenants had never been modified, and the project before the Planning Commission 2 


was not a hypothetical project but one which had applied for entitlements.   3 
 4 


• Appendix B, Biological Resources Analysis, Pinole Shores Project, Page 1, Findings, 5 


a protected tree grove to the east had been identified as a riparian habitat “…with a 6 


lot of best management practices in the overall conditions of approval to bind damage 7 


from being done to the grove…” and staff confirmed the grove was not being cut 8 


down since the area was riparian habitat.   9 
 10 


• Attachment G, Noise and Vibration Assessment, Page 38, Condition 1(B) as 11 


compared to Attachment A, Conditions 109 and 110, and clarified the conditions were 12 


what would be enforced as part of the project.   13 
 14 


• Appendix H-1 Pinole Shores Project Transportation Demand Management Plan and 15 


Attachment D, Transportation Analysis, clarified Appendix H-1 was the Traffic 16 


Demand Management Program.  When the original traffic analysis had been done, 17 


staff had placed the Traffic Demand Management Plan as part of the project and 18 


when the wholesale retail use had been added to the project staff wanted to ensure 19 


the Traffic Demand Management Plan was part of the Analysis.  It was the same 20 


thing but with two different analyses.   21 


 22 


• Attachment D, Traffic Demand Management Plan, Pages 10, 11 and 12, Table 2, 23 


Required TDM Measures and Table 3, Encouraged TDM Measures.  Staff clarified 24 


that most other newer projects that had required TDM Measures had not yet been 25 


built and staff was uncertain how effective they would be.  For the subject 26 


development, the developer may pick and choose putting the TDM Measures in 27 


place.   The overall transportation impact for the project would be less than significant.  28 


Higher level TDM Measures would have more impacts as part of an overall project.  29 


In this case, the Low and Medium TDM strategies would be consistent with the 30 


impacts from the project.   31 
 32 


• Attachment C, Plan Set Site Plan A1, clarified the differences between the truck 33 


loading docks and the “trailer parking ramps,” as shown on the plans, were smaller 34 


delivery trucks such as Federal Express (FedEx) trucks as an example.   35 
 36 


• Attachment B, CEQA Determination – CEQA Exemption, with Environmental 37 


Studies, Pages 103 and 104, 4.21(b), clarified the CEQA Analysis was a consistency 38 


determination with the General Plan, which anticipated cumulative build out and 39 


effects of the entire City.  The individual level project analysis would not take into 40 


account the cumulative effects from the actions or decisions from outside agencies. 41 
 42 


• The specific tenants were unknown and possible tenants that may require 43 


refrigerated storage, as an example, may require further CEQA review.   44 
 45 


 46 


 47 


 48 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     8 


• Appendix H-2, Pinole Shores Project – Supplemental Analysis for Warehouse/ 1 


Distribution Use, clarified the new scenario for Building 2 for 100 daily trips was one 2 


truck coming in and then the next one going out, and each time the truck came would 3 


be one trip and when it left would be a second trip. 4 
 5 


• Reiterated the recommendations from the Planning Commission Ad-Hoc 6 


Subcommittee, as shown on Pages 9 and 10 of the May 8, 2023 staff report.  Clarified 7 


that 4 (a), (b), (c) and (d), would be installed at the beginning of the project and prior 8 


to the occupancy of the building.  A traffic signal would be installed after the end user 9 


had been identified and pursuant to a warrant study. 10 
 11 


• As part of the conditions of approval and as part of the Noise Study, a noise wall 12 


would be required to be installed in front of Building 1 since the building was the 13 


closest to the residents in terms of truck traffic.  The applicant must also adhere to 14 


and could not exceed the allowable decibel levels in the City’s Noise Ordinance within 15 


certain timeframes.   16 
 17 


• Clarified “EV ready” meant all electrical conduit and electrical wiring would be ready 18 


to go with the exception of the EV charging stations.  19 
 20 


• Clarified all appeals to the City Council were de novo with the City Council to take 21 


into consideration the Planning Commission’s discussion and would then make a 22 


decision independently.  Confirmed the City Council would be provided copies of the 23 


May 8, 2023 meeting minutes of the Planning Commission’s discussion.   24 
 25 


• The project qualified for CEQA streamlining and exemptions under CEQA Guidelines 26 


Sections 15168 and 15183, but it was the City’s discretion to determine the relevancy 27 


of the General Plan and whether the General Plan EIR was still appropriate.   28 
 29 


• The recommendations from the Planning Commission Ad-Hoc Subcommittee as 30 


shown on Pages 9 and 10 of the May 8, 2023 staff report were again detailed.  In 31 


terms of the recommendations related to architecture, Pinole Shores I had been set 32 


up for a smaller condominium project in terms of smaller uses, whereas Pinole 33 


Shores II was for larger more robust industrial projects, which was why the 34 


architecture for Pinole Shores II differed from Pinole Shores I.  If the architecture for 35 


Pinole Shores II was required to be consistent with the architecture for Pinole Shores 36 


I it would not have provided the functionality needed.  There was some similar 37 


coloring between the buildings for Pinole Shores I and II although it was not the same 38 


for both.   39 
 40 


• Clarified the Planning Commission Ad-Hoc Subcommittee primarily dealt with the 41 


building massing, with the buildings square as opposed to rectangular in style.  The 42 


Ad-Hoc Subcommittee desired that the two buildings that faced each other would be 43 


similar in nature, although the one building had 225 square feet of office space which 44 


the other did not.  There had been discussions about matching the color or 45 


differentiating the color along that elevation adjacent to Pinole Shores I. 46 
 47 


   48 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     9 


• Page 22 of the May 8, 2023 staff report, Section 66474 of the Subdivision Map Act, 1 


Finding (e) was clarified and it was noted the Soils and Biological Studies had found 2 


no infiltration of animals since there was nothing on the site.  The main animals on 3 


the site were birds due to the riparian area.  If the developer found something on the 4 


site (wildlife) the work must cease to determine whether or not it was mating season, 5 


as an example, which had been outlined in the Soils and Biological Studies, although 6 


most of the area of construction had nothing there at this point.   7 


 8 


• The applicant had requested the entitlements as outlined in the May 8, 2023 staff 9 


report and PowerPoint presentation for design review, CUP and Parcel Map.  There 10 


was no requirement to separate each entitlement with separate actions to be taken 11 


by the Planning Commission.   12 
 13 


Assistant City Attorney Mog clarified, when asked, that as noted on the meeting agenda no 14 


public hearing was to be considered after 11:00 p.m.; however, if the Planning Commission 15 


opened the public hearing prior to 11:00 p.m. the Planning Commission may complete the 16 


public hearing this evening.   17 
 18 


PUBLIC HEARING OPENED  19 


 20 


Kevin Alcantra, Herdman Architecture & Design, 16201 Scientific Way, Concord, thanked 21 


staff for the thorough report and welcomed any questions from the Planning Commission on 22 


the site and building design.  He had no further comments given the very comprehensive 23 


staff presentation.   24 


 25 


Hector Vinas, GRP Shores, LLC, 2350 N. University Drive, #848300, Pembroke Pines, FL, 26 


thanked the Planning Commission for consideration of the project, commended Planning 27 


Manager Hanham for his tremendous job in preparing the staff report and all City staff who 28 


had been involved in the long and detailed process, with compromises on many items.  He 29 


stated that GRP Shores, LLC was based in the State of Florida but had roots in the State of 30 


California and had done projects in different parts of the country for infill sites that had already 31 


been developed so they were not tearing down any new habitats.  The subject project had a 32 


long history, had been formerly owned by Chevron and a demolition vehicle business, which 33 


had created a lot of contamination on the site.  The proposed plan was to develop some 34 


beautiful buildings and create jobs.   35 


 36 


Responding to questions from the Commission, Mr. Vinas clarified with respect to Pinole 37 


Shores I that the buildings had been designed to be condominiums and smaller units and 38 


there had been a market for that design prior to the financial crisis.  Once the financial crisis 39 


had occurred that market had disappeared.  GRP Shores, LLC had built a couple of 40 


warehouses in the City of Richmond which had leased immediately, one by Amazon, and 41 


while the proposed buildings in Pinole were not the size of buildings a business like Amazon 42 


would be interested in there had been a push to bring back manufacturing with technology 43 


to the U.S. and many companies had been looking to leave China and return to the U.S.  As 44 


productivity and technology increased there would be the need for wholesale warehouses.    45 


 46 


Mr. Vinas stated based on statistics, the City of Richmond had less than five percent vacancy 47 


and while some buildings appeared to be large there was a market for their use. The 48 


proposed building height at 40-feet was critical for new users and he suggested the 49 


appearance, location and shape of the building would allow them to be leased fairly quickly.  50 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     10 


Mr. Vinas clarified in response to questions related to Appendix A, Air Quality and 1 


Greenhouse Gas Assessment and details on the Operational Truck Traffic Emissions, as 2 


shown on Pages 7, 15, 26 and 30, and the discussion around sales targets for medium 3 


duty/heavy duty vehicles which required 100 percent of sales to be zero emission vehicle 4 


(ZEV) by 2040, that while the technology was improving quickly meeting that deadline would 5 


depend on many factors.   6 


 7 


Mr. Vinas further responded to questions related to the same Assessment regarding Table 8 


5, Operational Period Emissions, as shown on Page 16 regarding project truck trips, and 9 


commented that some of the reports had taken a worst-case scenario in terms of the number 10 


of truck trips.  Given the number of loading bays for the building, it would take seven trucks 11 


turning in and out every hour for one day to meet the worst-case scenario, and for that size 12 


building it would be highly unlikely with a low probability of meeting that scenario.  He also 13 


clarified that EV charging stations would be provided for passenger vehicles and not the truck 14 


docks. 15 


 16 


Mr. Vinas also clarified that no end user occupant had been identified.  Most of the buildings 17 


were not being built for a specific end user given the time required for the process and the 18 


fact that users did not plan that far in advance and a delivery date could not be guaranteed.  19 


Once the building was ready, he suggested it would not be difficult to obtain an end user.  As 20 


to the market value of the land, he was uncertain since it had not been appraised but given 21 


that interest rates had increased the value may have stayed the same since negotiations had 22 


begun with the City.   23 


 24 


Assistant City Attorney Mog advised a sales price for the property had been included in the 25 


agreement between the City and the developer and was around $3 million.   26 


 27 


Mr. Vinas added that a professional broker who represented national tenants would be hired 28 


to market the property.  GRP Shores, LLC had relationships with those brokers who would 29 


bring customers to them and that process could take six to twelve months.  He suggested 30 


the type of business that would be interested in the project would be Light Manufacturing and 31 


a use with a lot less truck traffic but more employment.  He clarified that GRP Shores, LLC 32 


was the owner/developer of the property and generally owned their properties on average 33 


three to four years, and he acknowledged potentially in the future the property could be sold 34 


to another developer.  He reiterated the types of uses that could be interested in the building 35 


may include small manufacturers that worked with the Defense Department or small 36 


pharmaceuticals, as examples, but it could really be anything from bio-tech to mechanical or 37 


electronic.  Once a tenant was secured and depending on the tenant needs, GRP Shores, 38 


LLC would help the tenant with approvals.  He acknowledged some refrigeration companies 39 


had been turned down due to the amount of work that would be needed along with extensive 40 


tenant improvements relative to what the tenant was able to pay as rent or what their credit 41 


capabilities were able to handle. 42 


 43 


As to whether GRP Shores, LLC had established a relationship with local businesses, Mr. 44 


Vinas stated that was not something they normally did but encouraged their tenants to be a 45 


good corporate citizen and work with the local area.  Depending on the type of tenant, the 46 


workforce for the project could be anywhere from 100 to 150 people. 47 


 48 


 49 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     11 


Kevin Carmichael, speaking on behalf of Contra Costa Residents for Responsible 1 


Development, an unincorporated association of individuals and labor organizations who lived 2 


and worked in Contra Costa County, urged the Planning Commission not to approve the 3 


project since the City had not complied with the CEQA environmental disclosure and 4 


mitigation requirements.  He suggested the project did not qualify for the streamlining 5 


exemptions claimed in the CEQA analysis and staff report.   6 


 7 


Mr. Carmichael read into the record CEQA Guidelines Sections 15168 and 15183 and stated 8 


the City’s CEQA analyses claimed the project was consistent with the 2010 General Plan 9 


and Three Corridors Specific Plan, and the Program EIR for the General Plan and Specific 10 


Plan, and that the project would not pose any new or more severe impacts than analyzed in 11 


the prior EIR.  This conclusion was not supported by the evidence in the record, which 12 


indicated the project may have significant impacts on air quality, public health and biological 13 


resources and would be more severe than the impacts analyzed by the prior EIR.  He 14 


suggested those impacts would require project specific mitigation measures. 15 


 16 


In this circumstance, CEQA Guidelines 15169 and 15183 required the City to prepare a 17 


Project Level EIR to address the impacts and give the public the opportunity to comment.   18 


The City could not rely on streamlining exemptions.  As an example, pursuant to the air 19 


quality analysis prepared by the City, the project construction diesel particulate matter (DPM) 20 


emissions would exceed the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) single 21 


source threshold resulting in a significant impact without mitigation and a potentially 22 


significant cancer risk to nearby residents and workers.  The air quality analysis assumed the 23 


use of U.S. EPA Tier 4 Interim Engine Standards and these standards would reduce the 24 


project’s construction emission cancer risk.  He stated that a future plan to reduce the project 25 


DPM emissions by 75 percent would reduce the cancer risk to nearby residents below the 26 


BAAQMD single source threshold; however, the City’s standard conditions of approval did 27 


not mandate the use of Tier 4 Interim equipment and instead COAQ-2 allowed the use of 28 


Tier 2 and Tier 3 equipment and required the applicant develop a construction operations 29 


plan to reduce the projects DPM by no less than 70 percent.   30 


 31 


Mr. Carmichael explained that Tier 2 and Tier 3 construction equipment was older and had 32 


much higher DPM than Tier 4 equipment and the City’s reliance on Tier 4 equipment was 33 


misplaced since it was not required by the conditions of approval.  As a result, the existing 34 


conditions of approval did not mitigate the project’s cancer risk to a less than significant level 35 


resulting in new and more severe quality impacts than previously analyzed and one which 36 


required additional mitigation.  The City may not rely on streamlining exemptions and must 37 


prepare an EIR to accurately disclose and mitigate this impact.   38 


 39 


The project also proposed new and more severe biological resources impacts than 40 


previously analyzed and to comply with the requirements of the 2010 General Plan and FEIR, 41 


mitigation measure 4.7.2B, the City had prepared a project specific biological resources 42 


assessment which found the project would have significant site specific impacts on nesting 43 


birds including special status passerine and raptors.  The CEQA analysis included a new 44 


condition of approval BIO-2 that required several site specific measures to avoid and 45 


minimize impacts to the nesting birds.   The BIO-2 measure required the City to prepare a 46 


Focused EIR under CEQA Guidelines Section 15183, and precluded the City from relying on 47 


a streamlined checklist and required project specific mitigation measures to reduce the 48 


impact above and beyond the standard conditions of approval required under the prior EIRs.   49 


 50 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     12 


CEQA Guideline Section 15168 also required the City to prepare a Project Level EIR to 1 


analyze those impacts.  Additional mitigation measures were required to reduce the project’s 2 


potentially significant air quality impacts and without additional analysis and enforceable 3 


mitigation measures the project may result in harm to nearby residents.   4 


 5 


Mr. Carmichael again urged the City to remand the project to staff to prepare a legally 6 


adequate subsequent EIR before bringing the project back for a public hearing.   7 


 8 


PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED  9 


 10 


Commissioner Martinez found Mr. Carmichael’s statements to be significant. He wanted 11 


assurance the City was in compliance with all state requirements and would not be exposed 12 


to a potential lawsuit.  He asked for guidance from the Planning Manager and the Assistant 13 


City Attorney as to how to interpret the comments.   14 


 15 


Assistant City Attorney Mog advised the City was comfortable that the CEQA exemptions 16 


cited were appropriate and justified.  The City had hired a very qualified CEQA expert who 17 


reported to the City and who was not beholden to the developer to analyze the evaluation of 18 


the impacts, who also worked with the City on all of the City’s residential housing projects, 19 


and who had a long-standing relationship with the City.  While someone may always sue to 20 


challenge the City’s CEQA determination, ultimately the developer would have to defend 21 


such a lawsuit.  He was not concerned with any liability to the City.   22 


 23 


Commissioner Menis understood that Mr. Carmichael’s core argument was that any time 24 


there was a potential significant impact that should be mitigated by a project specific 25 


mitigation would require a Project-Specific EIR rather than use of the streamlining measures, 26 


and he asked staff to provide clarification if that was an accurate assessment of CEQA and 27 


the EIR process.   28 


 29 


Ms. Ervin explained that the question was whether or not a mitigation was being added if that 30 


automatically required an EIR, and he stated there were many levels of environmental review 31 


and interpretation of how mitigation, a condition of approval or a uniformly-applied 32 


development standard could be imposed.  There was a lot of nuance, CEQA case law and 33 


different things to take into consideration when considering adequacy.  She reassured the 34 


Planning Commission that staff had done that in advance and had worked closely with the 35 


City Attorney to review all of the documents.  The information before the Planning 36 


Commission at this time was the culmination of that effort.  She agreed with the Assistant 37 


City Attorney that a reasonable and adequate analyses had been provided and it could be 38 


supported for the project.   39 


 40 


Commissioner Menis understood the City’s opinion was that if it adopted any mitigation 41 


measures they weren’t such that would require a Project Specific EIR, which Assistant City 42 


Attorney Mog confirmed. 43 


 44 


Given the points raised by Mr. Carmichael, Commissioner Sandoval asked the Assistant City 45 


Attorney why a Project-Specific EIR had not been required. 46 


 47 


Assistant City Attorney Mog stated the CEQA exemptions, as outlined in the staff report, 48 


applied and as such a Project-Specific EIR was not necessary. 49 


 50 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     13 


Ms. Ervin added that an exhaustive effort had been done to demonstrate compliance with 1 


the General Plan and each of the environmental categories, as outlined by staff during the 2 


PowerPoint presentation and in the staff report, which had identified the relevant General 3 


Plan policies and corresponding mitigation measures, and tracked consistency with those to 4 


explain the status and how they were being implemented and how the project would carry 5 


those mitigation measures forward, as previously identified in the General Plan.  For those 6 


reasons, she was comfortable the scope of the analysis and the impacts caused by the 7 


project had been anticipated in the General Plan with no new or more severe impacts, which 8 


was the determination leading to the comfortableness with using the CEQA exemptions.   9 


 10 


Chairperson Benzuly was concerned not knowing the end users and the potential impacts 11 


from noise, traffic, mechanical roof equipment and the like.  He liked Condition 38, End User 12 


Parking Analysis and suggested that could be applied to Conditions 42 and 46, whereby 13 


once an end user was identified another analysis for noise and the HVAC equipment could 14 


be done to determine whether or not any additional mitigation measures needed to be 15 


implemented.    16 


 17 


Chairperson Benzuly commented on the building massing and was uncertain whether 18 


Commissioners had any comments or whether they were comfortable with what had been 19 


provided.  As to the maintenance of the eucalyptus trees, he understood that was a moot 20 


point since they were related to Pinole Shores I.  He suggested a maintenance agreement 21 


for the road should be added as a condition of approval and EV charging for the trucks and 22 


trucks bays should be discussed further with a possible condition of approval.   23 


 24 


Commissioner Menis referenced Mr. Carmichael’s comments and understood he had 25 


concerns with Conditions 96 and 97 of Exhibit A of Attachment A.  He read each condition 26 


into the record and found that Condition 96 had been stringently written, particularly for 27 


subpart 2 as opposed to subpart 1, as shown.  He found either of the two sub conditions to 28 


be strong enough.  As to Condition 97, sub-conditions 2 and 3, as shown, would cover routine 29 


protections for nesting birds and he assured the public the conditions, as written, would 30 


provide significant protections for nesting birds and raptors.   31 


 32 


Commissioner Martinez commented that while he looked favorably on the project, before it 33 


moved forward, he wanted it to go back to the Planning Commission Ad-Hoc Subcommittee 34 


to review what the building would look like in the community since the building would be 35 


significantly higher than development around it.  He wanted to see the buildings from all 36 


different angles from Pinole Shores I, from the high density residential around it and from the 37 


Bay, to ensure that something as large as what had been proposed would not be built before 38 


anything could be done.   39 


 40 


Mr. Hanham advised the Planning Commission may continue the item to the next Planning 41 


Commission meeting for the additional information to be provided and have the architect 42 


submit drawings to show what the elevations looked like from various points of view or a 43 


condition of approval could be added that required prior to issuance of a building permit or 44 


submittal of a building permit, the elevations be reviewed to allow the project to move forward.  45 


He clarified the height of the building was within and met the Zoning Code requirements even 46 


though it may appear to be substantial.  He recommended the elevations be reviewed by the 47 


Planning Commission Ad-Hoc Subcommittee prior to issuance of building permits.   48 


 49 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     14 


Mr. Vinas understood the concerns but he was uncertain how the building could be changed.  1 


He suggested the architect had done a good job. He cautioned that any changes may impact 2 


marketing, the value of the property and eventual tenants and they wanted a property that 3 


was the most marketable to allow them to choose the right tenant.  He added there would be 4 


a lot of landscaping and once mature it would appear different from the initial day of planting.   5 


 6 


Commissioner Martinez appreciated the comments and while he was okay with the project, 7 


he preferred to defer the final approval and allow two weeks to allow a review of the artists’ 8 


renderings to ensure the building would not result in a substantial change and would not 9 


impact the quality of life of nearby residents.  He wanted to be thoughtful and methodical in 10 


the approach to the project.   11 


 12 


Mr. Hanham stated that direction would be at the discretion of the majority of the Planning 13 


Commission; however, he did not see the project would return in two weeks given the desired 14 


review by the Planning Commission Ad-Hoc Subcommittee and noticing requirements for 15 


Planning Commission meetings.  He again recommended the elevations be reviewed by the 16 


Planning Commission Ad-Hoc Subcommittee prior to issuance of the building permit given 17 


that the project met the parameters for height and the requirements of the Zoning Code.   He 18 


cautioned that any changes to the siting of the building would result in major consequences 19 


including impacts to the environmental review.   20 


 21 


Commissioner Bender stated as a retired architect he was in agreement with the staff 22 


recommended direction.  He also commented that pursuant to the site plan and landscape 23 


plan, there would be some screening from the residents and from the Bay Trail, which was 24 


far below the grade of the project.  With the trees and existing homes, the project would not 25 


be clearly visible and would eventually be screened from view and the project would not be 26 


clearly visible from many vantage points.  He further commented that he did not necessarily 27 


believe buildings had to look like the buildings next to them and while Pinole Shores II was 28 


different in appearance than Pinole Shores I that did not bother him.  He was also not 29 


concerned with the coloration differences between Pinole Shores I and II given the siting and 30 


truck loading dock location.  As a resident of San Pablo Avenue in Old Town Pinole, he 31 


appreciated the effort to minimize truck impacts to the surrounding areas. 32 


 33 


Commissioner Bender complimented the landscape architect for the plant palette with almost 34 


all plant material sustainable and with trees in the moderate category.  He was pleased with 35 


the trees on the east side which did not mimic the trees on the east side for Pinole Shores I, 36 


and suggested the gingko tree species would be handsome against the building.   37 


 38 


Commissioner Bender referenced Exhibit A of Attachment A and Condition 110, ENV-COA 39 


NOI-3 sub-condition (1), and suggested that either be stricken or be modified to eliminate the 40 


reference to redesigning Building 1.  He asked that the applicant be allowed to address the 41 


Planning Commission to respond to this condition.  42 


 43 


Commissioner Menis understood as part of the discussion and as part of questions he had 44 


asked of staff that the redesign of Building 1 had already been reflected in the packet of 45 


materials provided to the Planning Commission and the condition had been met, and Mr. 46 


Hanham clarified the wall had been redesigned. 47 


 48 


Commissioner Bender again asked that Condition 110, ENV-COA NOI-3 sub-condition (1) 49 


of Exhibit A of Attachment A be stricken. 50 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     15 


Speaking to the same condition, sub-condition (5), Commissioner Menis clarified his 1 


understanding the requirement for a noise barrier along the eastern boundary of the project 2 


site was permitted to be taller than the minimum 10-feet.   3 


 4 


Mr. Hanham explained that since the wall was adjacent to the building, the wall would rise 5 


adjacent to the building and not reach out.  6 


 7 


Commissioner Menis thanked staff for generating all of the reports and for answering all of 8 


his questions.   As to the project, while it may take time to bring tenants in he suggested it 9 


would be a net benefit to the City.   He suggested the conditions of approval broadly speaking 10 


addressed most of the concerns he had with the project about potential negative outcomes 11 


and potential EIR violations.      12 


 13 


Commissioner Menis stated in terms of the architecture that he had asked whether it would 14 


be possible for Condition 110, ENV-COA NOI-3 sub-condition (5) to include a requirement 15 


for the applicant to provide a conceptual drawing of north aerial view 1 and project forward 16 


the existing design to provide an idea of any height impacts.  17 


 18 


Commissioner Menis found the design to be interesting, striking, it was not bland or cookie 19 


cutter, with glass working with different colors, which he characterized as remarkable and 20 


with the architecture distinctive, which would be a draw for future tenants even if not a perfect 21 


match to Pinole Shores I.  His main hesitancy with the project was the truck traffic and the 22 


pollution that would be generated by the trucks.  Depending how quickly the zero emission 23 


mandate would become effective for heavy trucks and pursuant to the conditions of approval, 24 


there would be a build out requirement whenever it happened, which would mitigate his 25 


concern on that point.  At this time, he supported the project.   26 


 27 


Commissioner Sandoval also felt quite well about the project but he shared the concerns 28 


about the potential impacts to existing residents and commented that it would be nice to see 29 


the views of the building from that residential area. He generally felt good about the project 30 


that would be a net benefit to the City and while he was wary about not having an end user, 31 


the developer had reassured him it would be occupied relatively quickly.   32 


 33 


Commissioner Lam-Julian stated she had been leery with the lack of knowledge about the 34 


end user but she appreciated the developer/owner had been transparent and offered an 35 


understandable explanation.  She too wanted to see the additional visuals that had been 36 


requested.   She thanked staff for the comprehensive information that had been presented. 37 


 38 


Chairperson Benzuly referenced Condition 38, End User Parking Analysis, and suggested 39 


similar language be added to Conditions 42 and 46, and once an end user had been 40 


identified, the mechanical equipment and noise generated by the operations, mechanical 41 


equipment and traffic in and out be reviewed again to determine whether any changes were 42 


needed, with staff to determine the appropriate language.   43 


 44 


Assistant City Attorney Mog stated the objective standards would apply to whatever user was 45 


identified and the noise standards had already been met.  Condition 46 could be modified to 46 


reflect the noise standards established in the General Plan shall be applicable to all 47 


developments and staff would review proposed end users to ensure compliance.   48 


 49 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     16 


Mr. Hanham agreed the end user would still have to fall within the City’s noise standards and 1 


as the end user was identified staff would review the use to ensure those standards were not 2 


exceeded. 3 


 4 


Chairperson Benzuly understood that modification would only apply to Condition 42 based 5 


on the future tenant, and Assistant City Attorney Mog clarified staff could modify Condition 6 


42 with staff to review to ensure compliance with the standards shown in Condition 46.   7 


 8 


Commissioner Bender commented the hours of operation for exterior activities had not been 9 


identified in the Conditions of Approval, and Mr. Hanham explained as part of Condition 46, 10 


the hours of operation would be from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.  11 


 12 


Assistant City Attorney Mog cited Page 18 of 24 of the May 8, 2023 staff report, which stated:  13 


The operating hours for this type of use which generally are 7 a.m. to 7 p.m. on weekdays; 14 


however, some uses could require 24/7 operations, with the largest shift of employees 15 


being from 7 a.m. to 3 p.m.  There were no specific conditions on the hours of operation, 16 


but how noisy the use could be changed depending on the time of day, as noted, with no 17 


nighttime operations allowed to exceed 50 dba in the residential district.  18 


 19 


Commissioner Menis suggested that regulation would be relevant to the tenant as part of 20 


a CUP and Mr. Hanham clarified when the end user was identified as long as they were 21 


operating within the decibel levels of the Noise Ordinance that would be one thing but the 22 


statement in the staff report was more of a generalization based on the different end users. 23 


 24 


Commissioner Bender explained that he had raised the issue given his concerns with the 25 


truck traffic not what was occurring in the interior of the tenant space. 26 


 27 


Assistant City Attorney Mog clarified the truck noise would not be allowed to exceed the 28 


decibel limit overnight in a residential neighborhood.  As an example, if a truck was driving 29 


in overnight and honked its horn that could be a violation of the City’s Noise Ordinance 30 


and subject to enforcement if not corrected. Ultimately, the CUP could be revoked or 31 


modified as necessary.   32 


 33 


Commissioner Menis offered a motion to adopt Resolution 23-04, with the various associated 34 


exhibits and subject to modification to Condition 42, as indicated by Chair Benzuly.   35 


 36 


On the motion, Commissioner Martinez wanted the opportunity to review the plans in two 37 


weeks.  He seconded the motion with that amendment.   38 


 39 


Commissioner Menis clarified his motion did not include the additional “six weeks” for the 40 


architect to draft and return with drawings as requested by Commissioner Martinez.   41 


 42 


Commissioner Martinez asked that the motion be modified for the project to come back to 43 


the Planning Commission Ad-Hoc Subcommittee for review to ensure there were no 44 


significant impacts to the neighboring properties.   With that addition, he could support moving 45 


forward. 46 


 47 


Commissioner Menis asked staff what impact that direction would have on the project as 48 


opposed to a continuance to the next Planning Commission meeting.  49 


 50 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     17 


Assistant City Attorney Mog understood the request was to approve the entitlements at this 1 


time but have the developer/applicant submit plans to the Planning Commission Ad-Hoc 2 


Subcommittee for review and provide comments to the developer.  The motion could be 3 


restated to approve Resolution 23-04, as previously stated with the requirement to submit 4 


building elevations for the Planning Commission Ad-Hoc Subcommittee to review and 5 


provide comment.   6 


 7 


Chairperson Benzuly pointed out that not much would change, but Commissioner Martinez 8 


reiterated his concern with the potential impacts to nearby residents and rather he would 9 


appreciate the extra step to advocate for the neighbors and look at the building elevations.  10 


 11 


Commissioner Menis understood Commissioner Martinez sought, as an example, adequate 12 


shading via adequate tree growth was provided to ensure no glaring impacts to the residential 13 


areas, to be reviewed by the Planning Commission Ad-Hoc Subcommittee, which he was 14 


not opposed to as direction to the applicant.   15 


 16 


Assistant City Attorney Mog reiterated the direction would be for the applicant to submit 17 


building elevations for the Planning Commission Ad-Hoc Subcommittee to review and 18 


provide comment with the Planning Manager to work with the Planning Commission Ad-Hoc 19 


Subcommittee to provide comments to the developer on ways to soften any impacts.  He 20 


added there were also some minor discrepancies in the square footage that would be 21 


corrected and made consistent in the final plans.   22 


                                                                                                                                                                                    23 


MOTION to adopt Resolution 23-04, with Exhibit A:  Conditions of Approval, Resolution of 24 


the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole Approving Comprehensive Design Review 25 


(DR21-19), Conditional Use Permit for Wholesale Distribution and Parking Reduction 26 


(CUP23-03) and Tentative Parcel Map (PM23-01) to Construct Two Buildings Totaling 27 


117,692 Square Feet and Merging Five Parcels into One Located at 830-848 San Pablo 28 


Avenue (APNs 402-230-015, -016, -017, -018 & -020) and Finding the Project Exempt from 29 


the California Environmental Quality Act, and subject to: 30 


 31 


• Including the various exhibits as attached to the staff report. 32 


 33 


• Modification to Condition 42, as indicated by Chair Benzuly, and  34 


 35 


• The applicant to submit building elevations for the Planning Commission Ad-Hoc 36 


Subcommittee to review and provide comment with the Planning Manager with the 37 


Planning Commission Ad-Hoc Subcommittee to provide comments to the developer 38 


on ways to soften any impacts.  39 


 40 


 MOTION:  Menis  SECONDED: Martinez          APPROVED:  6-0-1 41 


           ABSENT: Banuelos  42 


 43 


Chairperson Benzuly identified the 10-day appeal process in writing to the City Clerk.   44 


 45 


F. OLD BUSINESS:  None  46 


 47 


G. NEW BUSINESS:  48 


 49 


H. CITY PLANNER’S / COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT   50 







  


 


               May 8, 2023     18 


Mr. Hanham thanked Planning staff for their work on the Pinole Shores II Project and 1 


Stephanie Downs with Meyers Nave who helped with some of the background.  He reported 2 


that staff continued to work on the objective development design standards and the Safety 3 


and Environmental Justice Elements to be presented to the Planning Commission during the 4 


summer.   5 


 6 


Commissioner Bender suggested it would be helpful moving forward for future projects to 7 


have three dimensional visuals provided.  He added that consistency in the plans was also 8 


helpful.   9 


 10 


Mr. Hanham advised that staff would be reviewing the submittal of application materials and 11 


that may be something that could be added.   12 


 13 


I. COMMUNICATIONS:  None  14 


 15 


J. NEXT MEETING 16 


 17 


The next meeting of the Planning Commission to be a Regular Planning Commission 18 


Meeting scheduled for May 22, 2023 at 7:00 p.m.  19 


 20 


K. ADJOURNMENT:  At 12:14 a.m.  21 


 22 


 23 


 Transcribed by:  24 


 25 


 26 


 Sherri D. Lewis  27 


 Transcriber  28 







Item E1 
 


  


 
TO:   PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 
FROM:  Justin Shiu, Consultant Planner 
 
SUBJECT:  Minor Subdivision for 2801 Pinole Valley Road Lot Split 


 
DATE:   May 22, 2023 


 
 


Property Owner and Applicant 
 


Pinole Valley Partners, LLC, Contact: Brian Baniqued 
2801 Pinole Valley Road 
Pinole, CA 94564 


File Planning Application PL23-0001/ Minor Subdivision MS 652-23 


Location 2801 Pinole Valley Road, Pinole CA 94564 


Assessor Parcel Numbers           360-010-029 


Total Area 1.74 acre parcel 


General Plan Land Use Designation  SSA, Service Sub Area 


Specific Plan Sub-Area SSA, Pinole Valley Road Corridor /Service Sub-Area  


Specific Plan Land Use/Zoning 
Classification 


OPMU, Office Professional Mixed Use 


Review Authority Tentative Maps: Four or Fewer Lots - Planning Commission – 
Pinole Municipal Code (PMC) Section 16.12.040 
 
California Environmental Quality Act Determination – Planning 
Commission – CA Public Resources Code Section 15315 


 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 


The property owner at 2801 Pinole Valley Road proposes to modify lot lines on the approximately 1.74-
acre parcel to split the existing parcel into two parcels: a 0.27 acre parcel primarily encompassing a portion 
of the front parking area (Parcel A) and a 1.46 acre parcel encompassing the remainder of the property 
(Parcel B).  This lot split request does not include any new proposed physical changes in the proposed site 
design previously approved under PL20-0072, for the commercial/office addition and new apartment 
building that would be developed on the property. The Planning Commission has the authority to adopt 
the draft Resolution (Exhibit A), approving the subdivision, pursuant to PMC Section 16.12.040. 


  


Memorandum  







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
May 22, 2023  PAGE 2 


  
 


2 


 


BACKGROUND 


The property at 2801 Pinole Valley Road is a 1.74-acre lot that is currently occupied by an approximately 
25,161 square foot commercial building built in 1984 and owned by the Pinole Valley Partners LLC (Figure 
1). The property serves a variety of office and commercial uses, including offices, commercial and personal 
services, and a donut shop. The property is adjacent to Pinole Valley Road to the west with Pinole Valley 
Shopping Center and Pinole Depot Plaza on the other side of the road; the ARCO fuel station and 
multifamily residential to the north; Westmont of Pinole senior living facility to the east; and Pinole Valley 
Community Church and 7-Eleven to the south.  
 
The property has a General Plan Land Use Designation of “SSA” (Sub-Service Area), which is intended to 
maintain and enhance existing land uses while providing land use flexibility and incentives to encourage 
new private investments and additional development. The Pinole Valley Road Corridor SSA is intended to 
maintain and increase existing employment opportunities and encourage new housing opportunities 
while accommodating commercial uses that serve residents through mixed use development. The 
property also has a Specific Plan Land Use/Zoning Designation of Office Professional Mixed-Use (OPMU), 
which allows development of larger office buildings and business parks with supporting retail and service 
uses, as well as other uses outlined in the Specific Plan.  
 
Figure 1: Project Location  


 


Project  
Site 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
May 22, 2023  PAGE 3 


  
 


3 


 


 
On May 9, 2022 the property owner received Planning Commission Comprehensive Design Review 
approval for a 17,280 square foot, four-story addition to the back of the existing office/commercial 
building and a new detached five-story 27,980 square foot, 29-unit apartment building (PL20-0072), 
subject to conditions of approval1. The proposed redevelopment, which consists of new construction for 
the addition and apartment as well as a reconfigured parking area, would occur at the rear of the lot 
(Figure 2). The existing building on site would remain, with partial demolition at the rear to accommodate 
the addition and an aesthetic upgrade to the exterior to maintain a consistent overall appearance 
between new and existing portions of the building. Landscaping on site would feature modified landscape 
areas around the redevelopment area in the rear portion of the lot and would include a refresh of 
landscaping at the front of the property. Accessibility upgrades would be made in the parking at the front 
portion of the lot and as new pedestrian pathways to provide access to the property as well as maintaining 
accessible paths within the property.  
 
Figure 2: BCRE Project (PL20-0072) Site Layout 


 
 
The property owner is currently managing logistics for the next step of the process, including preparing 
plan sets and applications for construction permits that will be submitted to the Community Development 
Department and Public Works Department for review, coordinating with outside agencies for other 
approvals, and securing funding for construction. Following consultation with construction lenders to 


 
1 Planning Commission Agenda and Packet is available at: 
https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/cms/One.aspx?portalId=10947056&pageId=14626563#planningcommission  



https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/cms/One.aspx?portalId=10947056&pageId=14626563#planningcommission





STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
May 22, 2023 PAGE 4 


4 


obtain financing, the property owner was advised to obtain a lot split to separate existing loans and new 
loans on different parcels, which would help facilitate construction.  


Property owners may submit an application to request a lot split through the Community Development 
Department if new lots meet minimum size requirements for the zoning district and other applicable 
standards. Under Section 16.12.040 of the Pinole Municipal Code, the Planning Commission is the 
approval authority of tentative maps for subdivisions of four lots or fewer.  


PROJECT OVERVIEW 


The property owner proposes to subdivide the existing 1.74-acre parcel into two parcels. Parcel A would 
be 11,918 square feet (0.27 acres) and primarily encompass the front parking area. Parcel B would be 
63,764 square feet (1.46 acres) and encompass the remainder of the property, including the existing 
building, driveway to the rear of the lot, and the rear of the lot that contains the approved 
office/commercial addition and new apartment building (Figure 3). The tentative map is included as 
Exhibit B. 


As described by the property owner, the primary reason for the lot split from one to two is due to the 
request of the construction lender, in conjunction with their lending terms and requirements. With the 
lot split, the current first loan on the property is segregated on one of the lots, while allowing the second 
lot to be one free and clear of any debt. This would provide opportunity for the newly created lot 
to receive a better primary construction loan to fund the approved new apartment building and office 
expansion.  


The proposed subdivision is not intended to change any physical aspect of the existing property or the 
property as proposed under the entitled plans for the office addition and apartment building (PL20-0072). 
The lot split shown in the tentative map consists of drawing new lot lines to form two parcels within the 
current property lines. There is no proposed change to circulation and access from what was approved in 
the entitlements. Shared circulation access and parking access would be maintained between the two 
created lots. As conditioned, an easement or agreement would be recorded with the map to maintain 
reciprocal access and parking between the two parcels.  


ANALYSIS 


Subdivisions of lots are regulated under Title 16 of the Pinole Municipal Code. Under Section 16.12.040, 
Planning Commission may consider, in its determination to approve a tentative parcel map, whether the 
proposed minor subdivision is in conformity with law and the municipal code chapter, whether the size 
and shape of the proposed lots is in general conformance to city requirements, and whether all the 
proposed lots will have proper and sufficient access to a public street. 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
May 22, 2023  PAGE 5 


  
 


5 


 


 
Figure 3: Proposed Subdivision 


 
 
Pinole Municipal Code  
 
The Zoning Code (Title 17) and the Three Corridors Specific Plan do not identify minimum lot size or 
dimension standards for properties located in the Service Sub-Area of the Pinole Valley Road Corridor and 
the OPMU zoning district. Title 16 of the Pinole Municipal Code contains specifications for developing 
subdivisions. General regulations for lot splits are provided in Chapter 16.20 of the Title, with Section 
16.20.290 providing standards for lot design and street improvements. Pursuant to the Table in PMC 
Section 16.20.290, as no more than 30 percent of the subject lot has slopes of 10 percent or greater, the 
minimum resulting lot size would be 6,000 square feet and minimum frontage would be 60 feet. The 
proposed subdivision would be consistent with the standards in Section 16.20.290, as shown in Table 1. 


 
Both parcels will have access to Pinole Valley Road, which is a public road. As conditioned in Condition of 
Approval No. 4 in the draft Resolution (Exhibit A), through an easement or agreement for reciprocal access 


Parcel 
A 


Parcel 
B 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
May 22, 2023  PAGE 6 


  
 


6 


 


and parking between the two parcels, free movement of circulation and parking will be maintained 
between the two parcels. Therefore, driveway access from the site to Pinole Valley Road would also be 
usable by both parcels. 


 
Table 1: Subdivision Parcel Standards 


 Standard Existing Parcel New Parcel A New Parcel B 


Lot Size 6,000 sf (0.14 ac) 75,681 sf (1.74 ac) 11,918 sf (0.27 ac) 63,764 sf (1.46 ac) 


Frontage 60 feet 212.79 feet 152.79 feet 60 feet 


Slope 
10% slope for no 


more than 30% of lot 
Complies Complies Complies 


 
Staff Comment: Staff has determined that the proposed subdivision meets the standards of Chapter 
16.20. Both parcels would be able to access Pinole Valley Road. 
 
Subdivision Map Act – California Government Code 


Section 66474 of the Subdivision Map Act (Division 2, Title 7 of the California Government Code) identifies 
findings in which a parcel map can be denied: 
 


A legislative body of a city or county shall deny approval of a tentative map, or a parcel map for 
which a tentative map was not required, if it makes any of the following findings:   


 
(a) That the proposed map is not consistent with applicable general and specific plans as 


specified in Section 65451. 
(b)  That the design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is not consistent with 


applicable general and specific plans. 
(c)  That the site is not physically suitable for the type of development. 
(d)  That the site is not physically suitable for the proposed density of development. 
(e)  That the design of the subdivision or proposed improvements are likely to cause 


substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their 
habitat. 


(f)  That the design of the subdivision or type of improvements is likely to cause serious 
public health problems. 


(g)  That the design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will conflict with easements, 
acquired by the public at large, for access through or use of property within the proposed 
subdivision. In this connection, the governing body may approve a map if it finds that alternate 
easements, for access or for use, will be provided, and that subsection shall apply only to 
easements of record or to easements established by judgment of a court of competent 
jurisdiction and no authority is hereby granted to a legislative body to determine that the 
public at large has acquired easements for access through or use of property within the 
proposed subdivision. 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
May 22, 2023  PAGE 7 


  
 


7 


 


Staff Comment: After reviewing above statements for denial A-G, Staff has determined that none of these 
statements apply and that the Parcel Map meets the existing standards of the City of Pinole Municipal 
Code. Staff recommends approval of the Parcel Map. 
 


(a) The proposed subdivision creates no change to the existing or proposed land uses on the 
property and would not be inconsistent with the General Plan or Specific Plan. 


(b) The proposed subdivision does not propose physical improvements related to creating the 
new parcels. 


(c) The proposed subdivision does not propose new development. Further, as conditioned, the 
property will maintain reciprocal access and parking between the two parcels. The existing 
and planned use of the site will not change as a result of the subdivision. 


(d) The proposed subdivision does not propose new development, therefore no change to 
density is proposed.  


(e) The proposed subdivision does not involve new design or improvements that could result in 
substantial environmental damage or substantially injure fish or wildlife or their habitats. 


(f) The proposed subdivision does not involve new design or improvements that could cause 
serious public health problems. 


(g) The proposed subdivision does not involve new design or improvements that would conflict 
with public access easements for access through or use of the site. Further, as conditioned, 
the property will include a reciprocal parking and access agreement to maintain circulation 
and parking access between the two parcels. 


 


ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 


The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) provides Categorical Exemptions which are applicable to 
categories of projects and activities that the Lead Agency has determined generally do not pose a risk of 
significant impacts on the environment. The subject project consists of a minor subdivision of one lot into 
two lots. The project is exempt under Section 15315 of the State CEQA Guidelines (Class 15 Minor Land 
Division).  
 


PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 


Pursuant to California Government Code § 65090 to 65094, public notice must be given at least 10 days 
before the scheduled date of a hearing. The notice is required to state the date, time, and place of 
hearing, identify the hearing body, and provide a general explanation of the matter to be considered. 
Notice of this hearing was provided in accordance with PMC §17.10.050 in the following manner: 


1- Published in at least one newspaper of general circulation in the city. 
2- Mailed to the owners of property within a radius of three hundred feet of the exterior 


boundaries of the property involved in the application.  
3- Mailed to the owner of the subject real property or the owner's authorized agent and to 


each local agency expected to provide water, sewerage, streets, roads, schools, or other 
essential facilities or services to the proposed project. 







STAFF MEMO 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
May 22, 2023  PAGE 8 


  
 


8 


 


4- Posted at City Hall. 
5- Mailed to any person who has filed a written request for notice. 


 


STAFF RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt Resolution 23-05 approving the subdivision of one 
lot into two lots at the 2801 Pinole Valley Road (PL23-0001 & MS652-23).  
 


EXHIBITS 


A. Draft Resolution 23-05 – with Exhibit A, Conditions of Approval 
B. Tentative Map 


 
 







PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-05 
WITH EXHIBIT A: CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PINOLE APPROVING 


MINOR SUBDIVISION (PL23-0001 & MS652-23) TO SUBDIVIDE ONE LOT INTO TWO LOTS 


AT 2801 PINOLE VALLEY ROAD (APN 360-010-029) 


 
WHEREAS, Brian Baniqued, Pinole Valley Partners LLC, (“Applicant”) filed an 


application with the City of Pinole for a minor subdivision to divide one lot into two lots (the 


“Project”); and 


 


WHEREAS, the Project is located at 2801 Pinole Valley Road, identified as APN 360-


010-029; and 


 


WHEREAS, the site has a General Plan Land Use Designation of Service Sub-Area 


(SSA); and 


 


WHEREAS, the site has a Specific Plan Land Use designation and Zoning designation 


of Office Professional Mixed Use (OPMU); and  


 


WHEREAS, the Project proposes to modify lot lines on the approximately 1.74 acre 


parcel to split the existing parcel into two parcels: a 0.27 acre parcel (Parcel A) and a 1.46 acre 


parcel (Parcel B); and 


 


WHEREAS, a subdivision of four or fewer lots is subject to review and approval of a 


Minor Subdivision application; and  


 


WHEREAS, the project meets the criteria for a Categorical Exemption pursuant to 


Section 15315 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission serves as the approval authority on Minor 


Subdivision applications; and  


 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has considered the Project in light of the items 


listed in Municipal Code section 16.12.040; and 


 


WHEREAS, a proposed condition of approval requires an easement or agreement for 


reciprocal access and parking between the two proposed parcels ensuring that free movement 


of circulation and parking will be maintained between the two parcels; and 


 


  WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing was distributed to all property owners within 300 
feet of the project site and a notice was published in the May 12, 2023 edition of the West 
County Times; and  
 


  WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on May 22, 
2023 and considered all public comments received, the presentation by City staff, the staff 
report dated May 22, 2023, and all other pertinent documents regarding the proposed request.  


ATTACHMENT A 







 
          NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the above recitals are true and correct and 
made part of this resolution. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole hereby 
approves PL23-0001 & MS652-23 subject to the Conditions of Approval, applicable to the entire 
Project, attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution, and hereby determines that the proposed 
subdivision is in conformity with the Subdivision Map Act and Chapter 16.12 of the Pinole 
Municipal Code, the size and shape of the proposed lots are in general conformance to City 
requirements, and the proposed lots will have proper and sufficient access to a public street, for 
the reasons provided in the Staff Report dated May 22, 2023, to Planning Commission. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole on this 22nd day of 
May 2023, by the following vote: 


                                            
  
 AYES:  
 NOES: 
 ABSTAIN:      
 ABSENT:  


                   
      __________________________________ 


Adam Benzuly, Chair, 2023-2024               
     


ATTEST:  
 
________________________________ 
David Hanham, Planning Manager 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-05 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           1 of 2 2801 Pinole Valley Road Lot Split                                                                             
May 22, 2023  Minor Subdivision (PL23-0001 & MS652-23)                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


1.  GENERAL CONSISTENCY – The project shall be consistent with the proposal 
under the tentative parcel map date-stamped received May 2, 2023 unless 
otherwise specified in these conditions of approval and shall be consistent with 
all applicable federal, state & local laws, including the California Subdivision 
Map Act and pertinent sections of the Pinole Municipal Code. 
 


Ongoing Community 
Development 
Department 


 


2.  CONVENANT – The owner shall hold harmless the City, its Council Members, its 
Planning Commission, officers, agents, employees, and representatives from 
liability for any award, damages, costs, and fees incurred by the City and/or 
awarded to any plaintiff in an action challenging the validity of this permit or 
any environmental or other documentation related to approval of this permit.  
The owner further agrees to provide a defense for the city in any such action. 
 


Ongoing Community 
Development 
Department 


 


3.  FINAL PARCEL MAP - The applicant shall submit a final parcel map for review 
and approval by the City Engineer, or their designee, to confirm the tentative 
parcel map has incorporated any final amendments, conditions, and Public 
Works requirements, prior to recordation with Contra Costa County. 
 
The applicant shall submit final lot closure calculations, legal descriptions, and 
any other materials required by the City Engineer for completion of final parcel 
map review prior to recordation. 
 


Prior to 
Recordation of a 
Final Parcel Map 


Community 
Development 
Department/ 
Public Works 
Department 


 







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-05 CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 


 


 
As Reviewed by Planning Commission                                           2 of 2 2801 Pinole Valley Road Lot Split                                                                             
May 22, 2023  Minor Subdivision (PL23-0001 & MS652-23)                                             


 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and 


Signature) 


4.  RECIPROCAL ACCESS AND PARKING EASEMENT/AGREEMENT – The text of the 
easement or agreement for reciprocal access and parking shall be prepared by 
the applicant and submitted for City review along with the final parcel map 
prior to recordation. The easement/agreement shall ensure shared parking and 
circulation access between the two parcels created by the subdivision. The 
reciprocal access and parking easement/agreement shall be recorded 
concurrently with the recordation of the final parcel map. 
 


Prior to 
Recordation of a 
Final Parcel Map 


Community 
Development 
Department/ 
Public Works 
Department 


 


5.  SITE PARKING – Any proposed reduction in the total number parking spaces on 
one parcel shall consider the number of parking spaces on the other parcel. The 
owner/applicant shall aim to avoid a reduction in net parking spaces on site, 
based on the total parking spaces from the two parcels. Where a reduction in 
net parking spaces on site is proposed, the property owner/applicant shall 
notify the Planning Manager who shall determine the applicable process to 
consider the proposal. 
 


Ongoing Community 
Development 
Department 


 


6.  EXERCISE OF ENTITLEMENTS – The applicant shall exercise the approval within 
one year of the date of this approval, unless an extension is requested at least 
30 days prior. Exercising the approval may include submitting a final parcel map 
to the Community Development Department/Public Works Department for 
review. Requests for extensions shall be in accordance with Section 17.10.100.  


Within One Year 
of Approval 


Community 
Development 
Department/ 
Public Works 
Department 


 


 







PARCEL MAP
17 MAPS 25


PARCEL 2


PARCEL MAP
17 MAPS 25


PARCEL 1


PARCEL MAP
25 MAPS 23


PARCEL 1


PARCEL MAP
25 MAPS 23


PARCEL 3


C
I
V
I
L
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G


C
I
V
I
L
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G


L
A
N
D


P
L
A
N
N
I
N
G


M
E


L
L


E
S


N
U


ATTACHMENT B







Item G1 
 


  


 
TO:   PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION  
 
FROM:  MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL 


PROGRAM MANAGER 
    
SUBJECT:  PROPOSED PRELIMINARY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


CONSISTENCY WITH GENERAL PLAN 
 
DATE:  MAY 22, 2023 


 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Public Works Department recommends the Planning Commission review the Proposed 
Preliminary Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and adopt Resolution 23-06 finding 
that the projects proposed in the CIP for Fiscal Years (FY) 2023-2024 through 2027-2028 
are consistent with the Pinole General Plan.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a comprehensive planning document used by the City 
to identify, plan, and fund capital projects and equipment purchases. Capital projects are 
usually “brick and mortar” improvements, such as street or utility projects, but also include 
projects that achieve economic development, blight alleviation, housing goals, or further 
other policy objectives of the City.  
 
Sections 65401 and 65402 of the California Government Code require that a local agency’s 
CIP be in conformance with the General Plan. General Plan conformity can be best 
described as CIP projects furthering the achievements of goals, policies, and infrastructure 
in the General Plan. State law also mandates that this determination of conformance be 
made by a designated planning agency. For the City of Pinole, the designated planning 
agency is the Planning Commission. The purpose of this staff report is to present the Public 
Works CIP projects for FY 2023-2024 through 2027-2028 so that the Planning Commission 
can make a determination of consistency with Pinole’s General Plan.  
 
The Proposed Preliminary Capital Improvement Plan lists 32 planned citywide public 
improvement projects and 9 infrastructure assessments for FY 2023-2024 through 2027-
2028. For FY 2023-24, there are 23 capital projects and 9 infrastructure assessments 
scheduled. Staff has also prepared an expanded unfunded project list to include projects 
that have been identified but have not advanced because a funding source has not been 
identified. Staff has recommended that several focus asset management plans and 


Staff Report  







STAFF REPORT 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
MAY 22, 2023                                                                           PAGE 2  
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  


infrastructure assessments be completed to aid in fully understanding needs and in 
allocating funding. These efforts will result in identified projects that the City needs to 
advance into its long-range financial plan. These projects are described in Attachment C. 
 
The projects in the Proposed Preliminary CIP fall into the following asset groups: 


• Facilities  


• Parks 


• Sanitary Sewer  


• Stormwater  


• Streets & Roads 


• Infrastructure Assessments  
 
ANALYSIS: CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN CONSISTENCY WITH GENERAL PLAN  
 
Funding is estimated for specific projects or asset plans in the Proposed Preliminary Capital 
Improvement Plan that support the goals and policies of following elements of the General 
Plan: 


• Community Character 


• Growth Management  


• Land Use & Economic Development 


• Housing 


• Circulation 


• Community Services and Facilities 


• Health and Safety 


• Natural Resources and Open Space 


• Sustainability 
 
The Proposed Preliminary Capital Improvement Plan includes funding for projects over the 
next five (5) fiscal years that support General Plan policies and enhance public 
infrastructure, amenities, and services in Pinole. The Capital Improvement Plan will also 
involve actively seeking out grants funds to supplement local funding sources to complete 
projects.  
 
The Capital Improvement Plan is consistent with and helps implement various General Plan 
goals and policies which are identified on individual project description sheets for each 
project in Attachment C and summarized in Attachment B. Appendix I of the Preliminary 
Proposed CIP (Attachment C) describes the applicable General Plan goals and policies in 
detail.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The Capital Improvement Plan’s General Plan consistency review is exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), as this review is not considered a project 
pursuant to the definition of a project in Section 15378 contained in the CEQA Guidelines in 
that the consistency review will not result in potentially significant physical changes in the 







STAFF REPORT 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
MAY 22, 2023                                                                           PAGE 3  
____________________________________________________________________________________ 


  


environment. Specific projects within the plan will include project-specific environmental 
review as part of future review and authorization to proceed.  
 


ATTACHMENTS 
 


A. Resolution 23-06 
B. General Plan Consistency Matrix for Proposed Preliminary Fiscal Year 2023-2024 


through 2027-2028 Capital Improvement Plan 
C. Proposed Preliminary Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 through 


2027-2028 
 


  







PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 23-06 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PINOLE 
RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE FIND THAT THE  


PRELIMINARY PROPOSED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  
FOR FISCAL YEARS 2023-2024 THROUGH 2027-2028  


IS IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 
 
 WHEREAS, the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) includes designated funding for 
planned public improvement projects so that the City may continue to maintain public 
infrastructure, enhance public facilities, work towards satisfying community needs, and help 
fulfill existing General Plan goals; and  
 
 WHEREAS, each year the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole reviews capital 
projects that will be planned, initiated, or constructed during the ensuing fiscal year for 
conformity with the General Plan as required by State Planning and Zoning Law 
(Government Code Section 65401); and 
 
        WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed the Preliminary Proposed CIP, 
which includes capital projects to be planned, initiated, or constructed during the 2023-2024 
fiscal year for conformity with the General Plan; and   
 
        WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed the Preliminary Proposed CIP 
and determined that the projects specifically support the goals and policies of the following 
General Plan Elements: Community Character, Growth Management, Land Use & 
Economic Development, Housing Element, Circulation, Community Services and Facilities, 
Health and Safety, Natural Resources and Open Space, and Sustainability; and  
 


 WHEREAS, in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the 
Planning Commission’s action to determine whether a proposed new or modified CIP 
project is in conformance with the General Plan, is not subject to the CEQA, pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15378 in that General Plan conformance findings required by 
State law is not a project as defined under CEQA; and additionally, since this is consistency 
finding, the previous environmental documentation for the General Plan is adequate CEQA 
documentation; and 


 
 WHEREAS, on May 22, 2023, the Planning Commission reviewed the Preliminary 


Proposed CIP for Fiscal Years 2023-2024 through 2027-2028 for consistency with the 
General Plan at which time interested persons had an opportunity to testify either in support 
or opposition to the projects; and  


 
WHEREAS, at the May 22, 2023, Planning Commission meeting, upon hearing and 


considering all testimony and arguments, if any, of all persons desiring to be heard, the 
Planning Commission considered all the facts relating to the consistency of the Proposed 
Preliminary CIP for Fiscal Years 2023-2024 through 2027-2028 with the General Plan.  
 


ATTACHMENT A 







 


2 of 2 
 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of 
Pinole hereby determines that those projects in the Proposed Preliminary CIP for Fiscal 
Years 2023-2024 through 2027-2028 conform to and are consistent with the City of Pinole 
General Plan.  


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole on this 22nd 
day of May 2023 by the following vote: 
 
  
 AYES:      
 
 NOES:  
 
 ABSTAIN:      
 
 ABSENT:  
 
          
 
 
____________________________ 
Adam Benzuly, Chair, 2023-2024 
 
         
 
 ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________________ 
David Hanham, Planning Manager 
 
 







     ATTACHMENT B 


City of Pinole     
FY 2023-24 – FY 2027-28 Capital Improvement Plan  
General Plan Consistency Matrix 


CITY OF PINOLE 
GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY MATRIX 


PROPOSED PRELIMINARY 
FY 2023-2024 – FY 2027-2028 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN  


 


Project number acronyms are as follows:  The General Plan Element acronyms are as follows: 


FA  
PA  
SS  
SW 
RO 
IA 


= Facilities 
= Parks 
= Sanitary Sewer 
= Stormwater 
= Streets & Roads 
= Infrastructure Assessments 


CC 
GM  
LU  
H 


CS 
HS 
OS 
SE  


= Circulation Element 
= Growth Management 
= Land Use and Economic Development 
= Housing Element 
= Community Services and Facilities 
= Health and Safety 
= Natural Resources and Open Space Element 
= Sustainability Element 


 Represents projects scheduled in future years (FY 2024/25-
FY 2027/28) 


 Appendix I of the Preliminary Proposed CIP 
(Attachment C) describes the applicable General 
Plan goals and policies.  
 


Project # Project Name  General Plan 


    Goals / Policies 


FACILITIES 


FA2302 Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements Policy CS.2.6 


FA2301 Public Safety Building Modernization Policy CS.2.6, Goal CS.1, Policy CS.1.1 


FA2202 Senior Center Modernization Policy CS.2.6, Goal CS.1, Policy CS.1.1 


FA1902 Energy Upgrades Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.9, Policy CS.9.1, Policy HS.4.3 


FA1901 Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot (formerly known 


as Fowler House lot reuse) 
Goal CE.5, Goal CS.1, Policy GM.4.1 


FA1703 City Hall Modernization (formerly known as Paint City 


Hall) 
Policy CS.2.6, Goal CS.1, Policy CS.1.1 


FA1702 Citywide Roof repairs and replacement Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.1, Goal CS.9, Policy CS.9.1 


   







     ATTACHMENT B 


City of Pinole     
FY 2023-24 – FY 2027-28 Capital Improvement Plan  
General Plan Consistency Matrix 


Project # Project Name General Plan 


    Goals / Policies 


PARKS  
PA2301 Tree Mitigation Goal HS.1 


PA2202 Skatepark Rehabilitation Goal CS.2, Goal CS.3, Policy CS 2.6 & 3.1, Policy GM.4.1 


PA2201 Pocket Parks – Galbreth Ave.  Goal CS.3, Policy GM.4.1 


PA2101 Installation of high-capacity trash bins Goal CS.9, Policy CS.5.1, Policy CS.8.3 


PA1901 Pinole Valley Soccer Field Rehabilitation Goal CS.1, Goal CS.3, Policy CS 3.1, Policy GM.4.1 


SANITARY SEWER 


SS2203 Effluent Outfall Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1 


SS2201 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1 


SS2101 
Secondary Clarifier – Center Column 
Rehabilitation 


Goal CS.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1 


SS2102 Air Release Valve Replacements Goal CS.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1 


SS2002 Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.1, Policy CS.2.6 


SS1702 Sewer Pump Stations Rehabilitation Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1 


STORMWATER 


SW2001 Roble Road Drainage Improvements Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.7, Policy CS.7.1 


SW1901 Hazel Street Drainage Improvements Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.7, Policy CS.7.1 


  


 
 
 
 
 







     ATTACHMENT B 


City of Pinole     
FY 2023-24 – FY 2027-28 Capital Improvement Plan  
General Plan Consistency Matrix 


Project # Project Name General Plan 


    Goals / Policies 


STREETS AND ROADS  


RO2304 
Safety Improvements at Tennent Ave/Pear & 
Plum 


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2 


RO2303 Pinole Smart Signals Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2 


RO2302 Safety Improvements on Arterial Roadways Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2 


RO2301 Road Rehabilitation (formerly known as Residential Slurry 


Seal and combination of RO2501 & RO2401) 
Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2 


RO2107 Brandt St. Improvements 
Goal CE.4, Goal CS.10, Policy CS.10.2, Policy GM.3.3, 
Goal CS.10 


RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation 
Policy CE.1.4, Policy CS.2.6, Policy CS.3.3, Policy H.3.1, 
Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2 


RO2101 Arterial Rehabilitation  Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2 


RO1902 Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent near RxR 
Policy CE.1.4, Policy CS.2.6, Policy CS.3.3, Policy H.3.1, 
Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2 


RO1802 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) 
Goal CE.1, Policy CE.1.1, Policy CE.1.4, Policy CE.1.5, 
Goal CE.3, Policy CS.2.6, Goal HS.1, Goal HS.3, Policy 
HS 3.4, Goal HS.6 


RO1714 
Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta 
Rd. (formerly known as HAWK at Appian Way and Marlesta Rd.) 


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2 


RO1710 San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad 
Policy CS.3.3, Goal H.3, Policy H.3.1, Goal CE.3, Goal 
CE. 7, Policy CE.7.3, Goal CS.10.  


RO1708 Pinole Valley Road Improvements Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 







     ATTACHMENT B 


City of Pinole     
FY 2023-24 – FY 2027-28 Capital Improvement Plan  
General Plan Consistency Matrix 


Project # Project Name General Plan 


  Goals/Policies 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


IN2301 Facilities & Real Estate Master Plan Goal CS.1, Policy CS.1.3, Policy CS.2, Policy CS.2.6 


IN2201 
Energy Conservation, Generation & Storage 
Assessment (formerly known as Energy Audit) 


Goal CS.1 & CS.9, Policy CS.9.1, Goal SE.3, Policy 
SE.1.3,  


IN2101 (formerly 


FA2102) 
Emergency Power at Critical Facilities Policy GM.4.1, Policy CS.2.6, Goal CS.9, Goal HS.4 


IN2102 (formerly 


FA2103) 
Municipal Broadband Feasibility Goal CS.11, Policy CS.11.2, Policy CS.11.5 


IN2103 (formerly 


SS2103) 
Recycled Water Feasibility  


Policy OS.8.1, Policy OS.8.7, Goal SE.9, Policy SE.9.1, 
Policy SE.9.4 


IN2105 (formerly 


RO2105) 
Appian Way Complete Streets 


Policy CE.1.4, Policy CS.2.6, Policy CS.3.3, Policy H.3.1, 
Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2 


IN2106 (formerly 


RO2106) Active Transportation Plan 
Goal GM.1, Goal GM.3, Policy GM.3.2, Policy CE.1.4, 
Policy CE.8.2, Goal CS.10 


IN1704 (formerly 


PA1704) 
Park Master Plan Goal CS.3, Policy CS.3.1 


IN1703 (formerly 


SW1703) 
Storm Drainage Master Plan  Policy GM.4.1, Policy CS.7.1 


 







      CITY OF PINOLE      


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


FY 2023/24 – 20 27/28 


PRELIMINARY PROPOSED 


MAY 22, 2023 


ATTACHMENT C







CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
FY 2023/24 – 2027/28 


CITY COUNCIL 
Devin T. Murphy, Mayor 


Maureen Toms, Mayor Pro Tem 


Anthony L. Tave, Council Member 


Cameron N. Sasai, Council Member 


Norma Martínez-Rubin, Council Member 


CITY MANAGER 


Andrew Murray 


PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 


Sanjay Mishra 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT & 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM MANAGER 


Misha Kaur 







Introduction 


The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a multi-year tool used to identify the City’s capital needs 
and schedule capital improvement projects over the upcoming five-year period. Capital 
improvements include the design, purchase, construction, maintenance, or improvement of 
public capital assets (i.e., streets, parks, buildings, etc.). 


The projects in the CIP fall into the following broad categories: 


 Facility maintenance;
 Parks;
 Sewer collection and treatment;
 Stormwater;
 Streets and roads; and
 Infrastructure assessments.


The FY 2023/24 – 2027/28 CIP contains 32 capital improvement projects and 9 infrastructure 
assessments that are scheduled to be undertaken over the five-year timeframe and are fully or 
partially funded. The CIP also includes information for 35 unfunded projects. A funded project is 
one that has identified specific funding, including on-going existing resources to fully implement 
the project. A partially funded project has funding to accomplish various phases of the project 
but lacks sufficient funding to complete the project. An unfunded project is one that has been 
identified in the CIP as a need but no funding secured to implement the project. Should funding 
become available through grant or other sources, the unfunded list can be reviewed to 
determine if it is suitable to seek such funding. 


Each project is assigned a project number and described in detail in the project sheets. The 
nomenclature for the project number is derived as follows:  


 Project numbers begin with the abbreviation of the
project category, followed by the year the project was
first programmed, and then a unique sequence
number. For example, FA2001 refers to a facilities
project which was first programmed in 2020 with a
unique sequence number of 01. Unfunded projects
begin with UF and are followed by a unique sequence
number.


The CIP is reviewed and updated annually. In recent years, the City has increased its focus on 
assessing the state of the City’s infrastructure by inventorying all the assets, assessing their 
contributions to a safe and vibrant Pinole, assessing their current conditions, and creating a 
disciplined investment approach resulting in a strong and purpose driven Capital Investment 
Plan. 


The preparation and adoption of the CIP is an important part of Pinole’s financial planning and 
budgeting process. Proposed projects are reviewed by the Planning Commission for 
consistency with the General Plan. The project description sheet provides information on the 
General Plan goal or policy that the project aligns with. Appendix I describes the applicable 
General Plan goals and policies. The Finance Subcomittee also reviews the CIP and makes 
recommendations.  


Category Abbreviation 
Facilities FA 
Parks PA 
Sewer SS 
Stormwater SW 
Streets & 
Roads 


RO 


Infrastructure 
Assessments 


IA 


Unfunded UF 







 
 


The process for developing the CIP involves the following steps: 


 


 


Development of the FY 2023/24 thru FY 2027/28 CIP 
 
Most of the projects in the FY 2023/24 thru FY 2027/28 CIP are the continuation of multi-year 
projects that have already been initiated or are projects that were included in the prior year’s 
CIP but have not yet been initiated. The FY 2023/24 thru FY 2027/28 CIP was developed by 
taking the adopted FY 2022/23 thru FY 2026/27 CIP, then deleting projects that have been 
completed or no longer seem necessary and adding new projects. Below is a summary of the 
changes during FY 2022/23.  
 
Project added to the CIP by the City Council during FY 2022/23 
• RO2304 – Safety Improvements at Tennent Ave./Pear & Plum St. 
 
Project removed from the CIP by the City Council during FY 2022/23 
• FA2201 – Faria House Renovations 
 
Project removed from the CIP by the Staff during FY 2022/23 
• SW2002 – Adobe Road Repair and Drainage Improvements 
 
Projects expected to be complete by FY 2022/23 
• FA2002 – Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 
• PA2203 – Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements 
• IN2104 – Local Road Safety Plan 
• IN2001 – Sanitary Sewer Master Plan  
 
The City’s capital projects have historically been prioritized based on a number of factors, 
including regulatory compliance, health/safety, grant funding availability, sustainability and 
conservation, and others. In FY 2022/23, City staff created a more structured, quantitative 
methodology for prioritizing capital projects. The prioritization matrix is a planning and 
evaluation tool to optimize available resources. Staff ranks capital projects which have not been 
initiated based on the following methodology. 
 


CATEGORY SCORE (1-5)  CATEGORY 
WEIGHT 


WEIGHTED 
SCORE 


Regulatory 
Compliance 


  4  


Health/Safety   3  
Project 
Dependency/Bundling 


  3  


Long-Term Planning   2  
State of Infrastructure   2  


Identify projects 
for CIP budget


Prioritize projects 
and identify 


funding


Prepare budget 
for CIP


CIP Review by 
Finance 


Subcommittee 
and Planning 
Commission 


City Council 
adoption


Implementation of 
approved projects 


in CIP







 
 


Operating Budget 
Impact 


  2  


Quality of Life   2  
Grant Funding   1  
Sustainability and 
Conservation 


  1  


TOTAL SCORE (100 Points Maximum)  
 
The methodology scores each potential capital project on nine weighted criteria. This results in 
a score between 0 and 100 for each project. Staff has used this new methodology for the first 
time in creating the FY 2023/24 through 2027/28 Five-Year CIP.  
 
Staff rated all of the projects in the current CIP that are underway and confirmed that they are 
the highest-ranking projects. The ranked projects serve as the basis for selecting which capital 
projects staff initiates based on available resources. Note, this matrix does not consider 
infrastructure assessments. Project sheets contain the weighted score of the project. Additional 
information on category scoring guidelines are described in Appendix II. Staff also rated the 
projects in the current CIP that have not yet been initiated. The ranking of these not-yet-initiated 
projects was used by staff to propose, in the FY 2023/24 through 2027/28 Five-Year CIP, which 
projects to schedule for FY 2023/24 and which to schedule for later years. 
 
Projects from the adopted FY 2022/23 through 2026/27 Five-Year CIP that have not yet been 
started and staff recommends for deferral because they are low priority 
• FA2302 – Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements 
• PA2201 – Pocket Parks – Galbreth Rd. 
• PA1901 – Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation  
• SW2001 – Roble Road Drainage Improvements 
• RO2301 – Road Rehabilitation (formerly known as Residential Slurry Seal and   


      combination of RO2501 & RO2401) 
• RO2107 – Brandt St. Improvements 
• RO1708 – Pinole Valley Road Improvements 
 
New projects that staff recommended for addition because they are high priority 
• PA2301 – Tree Mitigation 
• RO2303 – Pinole Smart Signals 
• RO2302 – Safety Improvements on Arterial Roadways 
• IN2301 – Facilities and Real Estate Master Plan 
 
Below are the list of capital improvement projects and infrastructure assessments included in 
the FY 2023/24 – 2027/28 CIP: 
 


FACILITIES 


Project # Project Name 


FA2302 Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements 


FA2301 Public Safety Building Modernization 


FA2202 Senior Center Modernization 







 
 


FA1902 Energy Upgrades 


FA1901 Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot (formerly known as Fowler House lot reuse) 


FA1703 City Hall Modernization (formerly known as Paint City Hall) 


FA1702 Citywide Roof repairs and replacement 


PARKS 


Project # Project Name 


PA2301 Tree Mitigation 


PA2202 Skatepark Rehabilitation 


PA2201 Pocket Parks - Galbreth Rd. 


PA2101 Installation of high-capacity trash bins 


PA1901 Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation 


SANITARY SEWER 


Project # Project Name 


SS2203 Effluent Outfall 


SS2201 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 


SS2101 Secondary Clarifier - Center Column Rehabilitation 


SS2102 Air Release Valve Replacements 


SS2002 Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel 


SS1702 Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation  


STORMWATER 


Project # Project Name 


SW2001 Roble Road Drainage Improvements 


SW1901 Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements 


STREETS & ROADS 


Project # Project Name 


RO2301 Road Rehabilitation (formerly known as Residential Slurry Seal) 


RO2101 Arterial Rehabilitation  


RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation 


RO2107 Brandt St. Improvements 


RO1902 Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave. near R X R 







 
 


RO1802 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) 


RO1710 San Pablo Ave. Bridge over BNSF Railroad 


RO1708 Pinole Valley Road Improvements  


RO1714 Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta Rd. (formerly known as HAWK at Appian Way and 
Marlesta) 


RO2304 Safety Improvements at Tennent Ave./Pear & Plum 


RO2303 Pinole Smart Signals 


RO2302 Safety Improvements on Arterial Roadways 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Project # Project Name 


IN2201 Energy Conservation, Generation, & Storage Assessment (formerly known as Energy Audit) 


IN2101 Emergency Power for Critical Facilities 


IN2102 Municipal Broadband Feasibility 


IN2103 Recycled Water Feasibility 


IN2301 Facilities and Real Estate Master Plan 


IN2106 Active Transportation Plan  


IN2105 Appian Way Complete Streets (formerly Project #RO2105) 


IN1703 Storm Drainage Master Plan 


IN1704 Park Master Plan 


 
The FY 2023/24 – 2027/28 CIP contains a list of 35 unfunded projects. The following projects 
were added as a result of recommendations from recently completed master planning efforts 
and bridge inspections: 


 Pinon – 1 
 Pinon – 2 
 Tennent – 1  
 Tennent – 2 
 Signalized Intersections 
 Pedestrian Safety at Signalized Intersections 
 Safety at Unsignalized Intersections 
 Roadway Segments # 1 
 Roadway Segments # 2 
 Roadway Segments # 3 
 Vehicular Bridge Maintenance  


The following projects were added as a result of Council requests: 


 Fernandez Park Improvements 







 
 


 San Pablo Avenue Complete Streets 
 Faria House Renovations 


The following projects were removed: 


 Installation of High Intensity Activated crossWALK (HAWK) 
 San Pablo Lift Station Upgrade 
 Sewer Collection System Rehabilitation 


Next Steps in City Capital Planning 
 
The City is in the process of completing a condition assessment of all of the City’s capital assets 
to identify the funding levels required to maintain these assets. The City will continue to 
integrate capital planning information into the Long-Term Financial Plan, so City decision 
makers are aware of the City’s capital needs when they consider allocation of the City’s limited 
financial resources and consider possibly pursuing additional sources of City revenue.  
 


Project Funding  


A variety of funding sources support projects listed in the CIP. The first year’s program in the 
CIP is adopted by the City Council as the Capital Budget, as a counterpart to the annual 
Operating Budget. The fiscal resources are appropriated only in the first year, the subsequent 
four years of the CIP are important for long term planning and subject to further review and 
modification.  


The CIP is funded primarily with funds restricted for specific purposes. The next section 
descibes various funding sources and their restrictions. Some projects are entirely or partially 
funded by grants and reimbursements from state and federal government and other agencies.  


Funding Sources 


Fund # Fund Name 
(restriction) 


Description 


100 General Fund 
(unrestricted) 


The General Fund is the main operating fund for the City. 
It accounts for sources and uses of resources that 
(primarily) are discretionary to the City Council in the 
provision of activities, programs and services deemed 
necessary and desirable by the community. 


106 
Measure S 2014 
(unrestricted) 


Accounts for 2014 voter-approved half-cent Local Use Tax 
which levies 0.5% each on all merchandise. Although these 
are unrestricted General Fund revenues, the 2014 Use 
Taxes have been allocated by the City Council to fund 
Infrastructure Projects as their highest funding priority.  


200 
Gas Tax - RMRA 
(roads and right-of-
way) 


Accounts for the Highway Users Tax (HUTA) State imposed 
excise taxes on gasoline and diesel fuel sales within the 
City limits. Gas Tax funds are restricted for use in the 
construction, improvement and maintenance of public 
streets. The taxes are allocated to Pinole through the Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) 
established by the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017.  







 
 


214 Solid Waste 


Accounts for special revenue received from Republic 
Services from a surcharge assessed on customer rates for 
solid waste services. These funds are set aside for future 
solid waste capital and for a rate stabilization fund.   


276 
Growth Impact Fees 
(nexus identified 
needs) 


Accounts for development fees collected to mitigate the 
impact of new development. Provides funds for nexus 
identified needs only.  


325 
City Street 
Improvements  
(roads only) 


Accounts for funds set aside by the City of Pinole to fund 
street improvement projects. The Measure S 2014 funding 
plan allocates $250k annually to this fund.  


500 
Sewer Enterprise 
(sewer only) 


Accounts for fees charged to residents and businesses for 
sewer utilities.  Fees are used to operate the Pinole-
Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant which services the 
Pinole and Hercules areas.  


Grants 
 
Certain projects are eligible to receive grant funds from state, federal, or other agencies. City 
staff actively pursues outside funding sources to support projects that are programmed in the 
CIP. Grants differ based on scope of work, funding source, requirements, and timelines. A 
grant’s scope is determined by the policy goals of the grantor, and the grantee is obligated to 
provide deliverables based on the terms and conditions set forth in the grant funding agreement.  
 
Before responding to a grant opportunity, staff reviews the grant solicitation to evaluate the: 


 eligibility requirements to ensure the City can apply for funds; 
 alignment of scope with the City’s adopted CIP; 
 feasibility of undertaking the responsibility of grant deliverables; 
 short term revenue vs. long term costs of the oppprtunity to ensure that the grant 


revenue does not result into a fiscal burden of unprecedented permanent or long term 
expenditures such as the need to hire additional staff, ongoing operations and 
maintenance; 


 required resources vs. available resources such as staff support and grant match; 
 indirect costs related to administration of the grant such as legal fees; and 
 cost benefit analysis to confirm that the grant is in the City’s best interests. 


Once a viable grant opportunity is identified, staff follows the grantors’ determined application 
process to develop application materials and submit the grant. After notification of grant award, 
staff is responsible for grant implementation which includes project execution, oversight, 
reporting/reimbursement requests, record keeping, and project closeout. Effective management 
of the grant funds limits the City’s exposure to grant-related legal liability and improves the 
efficiency and impacts of projects which are funded through grants. 
 
Road projects listed in the CIP receive grant funding from a variety of sources such as: 


 California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) 
o Highway Bridge Program (HBP) – funds to improve bridge structural safety. 


 Project: RO1710  
 







 
 


o Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) – funds projects that significantly 
reduce fatalities and injuries on all public roads.  


 Project: RO2302 
 


 West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC)  
o Subregional Transportation Mitigation Program (STMP) – funds projects that provide 


congestion relief and mitigate traffic impacts on regional routes through capacity 
improvements on those routes, improved transit services for subregional and 
regional travel, and improved facilities that allow West County residents to more 
efficiently access regional routes and transit service.  


 Projects: IN2105, RO1902, and RO1710 
 


 Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)  
o One Bay Area Grant  (OBAG) – policy framework for MTC’s distribution of federal 


State Transportation Program and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program funds. The OBAG program provides funding for local 
street and road maintenance, streetscape enhancements, bicycle and pedestrian 
improvements, Safe Route to School projects, Priority Conservation Areas, and 
Transportation planning.  


 ProjectS: RO1714, RO2303  
 


o Transportation Developlment Act (TDA) Article 3 – funds construction and/or 
engineering of bicycle or pedestrian capital or quick build projects, maintenance 
of Class I or Class IV separated bikeways, bicycle and/or pedestrian safety 
education projects, development of a comprehensive bicycle or pedestrian 
facilities plans, and restriping Class II bicycle lanes and buffered bicycle lanes.  


 Project: RO1714  


The receipt of certain grants and reimbursements typically follow the award of contracts; 
therefore, other City funding is programmed for front-end financing of the total estimated project 
costs.  







 


 
 


 


CITY OF PINOLE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2023/24 THROUGH FY 2027/28 


FUNDING SUMMARY 
      


SOURCES BY FUND FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total 


100 - General Fund  $          260,000   $        480,000   $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $            740,000  


106 - Measure S 2014  $       2,948,376   $     3,197,746   $        500,000   $                 -     $                 -     $         6,646,122  


200 - Gas Tax  $          428,910   $        481,082   $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $            909,992  


214 - Solid Waste  $          125,000   $        100,000   $        100,000   $        100,000   $                 -     $            425,000  


215 - Grant: TLC  $          133,579   $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $            133,579  


215 - Grant: HSIP    $          239,040   $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $            239,040  


215 - Grant: OBAG  $          350,000   $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $            350,000  


276 - Growth Impact Fees  $       1,003,000   $        395,000   $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $         1,398,000  


325 - City Street Improvements  $                    -     $        417,321   $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $            417,321  


325 - TDA Article 3  $          129,400   $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $            129,400  


325 - Grant: STMP Fees  $       1,643,889   $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $         1,643,889  


325 - Grant: HBP  $            41,394   $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $              41,394  


377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation  $          758,624   $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $            758,624  


500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund  $       2,825,814   $     3,160,597   $        800,000   $     3,800,000   $     4,129,000   $       14,715,411  


Sources Total  $     10,887,026   $     8,231,746   $     1,400,000   $     3,900,000   $     4,129,000   $       28,547,772  


Unfunded Total  $       1,320,300   $   28,950,000   $                 -     $                 -     $                 -     $       30,270,300  


Total Sources Required  $     12,207,326   $   37,181,746   $     1,400,000   $     3,900,000   $     4,129,000   $       58,818,072  
 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION SHEETS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







SOURCES BY FUND FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total


100 - General Fund 260,000$          480,000$        -$                -$                -$                740,000$             


106 - Measure S 2014 2,948,376$       3,197,746$     500,000$        -$                -$                6,646,122$          


200 - Gas Tax 428,910$          481,082$        -$                -$                -$                909,992$             


214 - Solid Waste 125,000$          100,000$        100,000$        100,000$        -$                425,000$             


215 - Grant: TLC 133,579$          -$                -$                -$                -$                133,579$             


215 - Grant: HSIP  239,040$          -$                -$                -$                -$                239,040$             


215 - Grant: OBAG 350,000$          -$                -$                -$                -$                350,000$             


276 - Growth Impact Fees 1,003,000$       395,000$        -$                -$                -$                1,398,000$          


325 - City Street Improvements -$                  417,321$        -$                -$                -$                417,321$             


325 - Grant: TDA Article 3 129,400$          -$                -$                -$                -$                129,400$             


325 - Grant: STMP Fees 1,643,889$       -$                -$                -$                -$                1,643,889$          


325 - Grant: HBP 41,394$            -$                -$                -$                -$                41,394$               


377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation 758,624$          -$                -$                -$                -$                758,624$             


500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 2,825,814$       3,160,597$     800,000$        3,800,000$     4,129,000$     14,715,411$        


Sources Total 10,887,026$     8,231,746$     1,400,000$     3,900,000$     4,129,000$     28,547,772$        


Unfunded Total 1,320,300$       28,950,000$   -$                -$                -$                30,270,300$        


Total Sources Required 12,207,326$     37,181,746$   1,400,000$     3,900,000$     4,129,000$     58,818,072$        


PRJ # PROJECT FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total


FA2302 Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements  $                       -    $            80,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                  80,000 
FA2301 Public Safety Building Modernization  $             100,000  $          100,000  $          100,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                300,000 
FA2202 Senior Center Modernization  $             160,000  $          100,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                260,000 
FA1902 Energy Upgrades  $             150,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                150,000 
FA1901 Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot                       $             405,085  $          922,746  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $             1,327,831 
FA1703 City Hall Modernization                                          $             125,000  $          125,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                250,000 
FA1702 Citywide Roof repairs and replacement  $             450,000  $          450,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                900,000 


PRJ # PROJECT FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total


PA2301 Tree Mitigation  $               75,000  $            75,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                150,000 
PA2202 Skatepark Rehabilitation  $                       -    $          150,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                150,000 
PA2201 Pocket Parks - Galbreth Rd.  $                       -    $            65,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                  65,000 
PA2101 Installation of high-capacity trash bins  $             125,000  $          100,000  $          100,000  $          100,000  $                    -    $                425,000 
PA1901 Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation  $                       -    $          200,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                200,000 


PRJ # PROJECT FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total


SS2203 Effulent Outfall*  $             150,000  $                    -    $                    -    $       3,000,000  $                    -    $             3,150,000 
SS2201 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation  $          1,500,000  $          800,000  $          800,000  $          800,000  $          800,000  $             4,700,000 
SS2101 Secondary Clarifier - Center Column Rehabilitation*  $             425,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                425,000 
SS2102 Air Release Valve Replacements*  $               50,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                  50,000 
SS2002 Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel*  $             100,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                100,000 
SS1702 Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation  $          1,200,000  $       2,254,000  $                    -    $                    -    $       3,329,000  $             6,783,000 


PRJ # PROJECT FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total


SW2001 Roble Road Drainage Improvements  $                       -    $          700,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                275,000 
SW1901 Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements  $             558,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                250,000 


PRJ # PROJECT FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total


RO2304 Safety Improvements at Tennent Ave./Pear & Plum  $             110,000  $          400,000  $          400,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                910,000 
RO2303 Pinole Smart Signals  $             154,302  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                154,302 
RO2302 Safety Improvements on Arterial Roadways  $             275,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                275,000 
RO2301 Road Rehabilitation  $                       -    $          250,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                250,000 
RO2107 Brandt St. Improvements  $                       -    $          170,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                170,000 
RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation  $                    814  $          655,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                655,814 
RO2101 Arterial Rehabilitation  $          1,187,534  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $             1,187,534 
RO1902 Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave. near R X R  $          1,365,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $             1,365,000 
RO1802 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview)  $                       -    $          200,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                200,000 
RO1714 Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta Rd.  $             672,429  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                672,429 
RO1710 San Pablo Ave. Bridge over BNSF Railroad  $          1,974,162  $     28,800,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $           30,774,162 
RO1708 Pinole Valley Road Improvements  $                       -    $          100,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                100,000 


PRJ # ASSESSMENT FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total
IN2301 Facilities & Real Estate Master Plan  $             200,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                200,000 


IN2201
Energy Conservation, Generation, & Storage 
Assessment


 $               50,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                  50,000 


IN2101 Emergency Power for Critical Facilities  $               30,000  $          170,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                200,000 
IN2102 Municipal Broadband Feasibility  $               60,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                  60,000 
IN2103 Recycled Water Feasibility  $               60,000  $          140,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                200,000 
IN2105 Appian Way Complete Streets  $             100,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                100,000 
IN2106 Active Transportation Plan  $             170,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                170,000 
IN1703 Storm Drainage Master Plan  $               75,000  $          175,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                250,000 
IN1704 Park Master Plan  $             150,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                150,000 


Uses by Project Total $12,207,326 $37,181,746 $1,400,000 $3,900,000 $4,129,000


LEGEND:
• Project numbers: FA = Facilities; PA = Parks; SS = Sanitary Sewer; SW = Storm Water; RO = Streets & Roads; IN = Infrastructure Assessments
* Project cost to be split 50% with the City of Hercules


STREETS & ROADS


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS


CITY OF PINOLE


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2023/24 THROUGH FY 2027/28


 FUNDING SUMMARY


FACILITIES


PARKS


SANITARY SEWER


STORMWATER







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 12


New Expansion
Replacement X Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


80,000.00$                    -$                                -$                                -$                                80,000$                       


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
7,950                              7,950$                         


65,500                            65,500$                       
6,550                              6,550$                         


80,000$                          -$                                -$                                -$                                80,000$                       


80,000$                          80,000$                       


80,000$                          -$                                -$                                -$                                80,000$                       


-$                                


FA2302 - PLUM ST. PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Description


Unappropriated Subsequent YearsType of CIP


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


: FacilitiesFunctional Area


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Budget     


-$                                


-$                                


FY 2023-24


TOTAL USES


TOTAL FUNDS


Project Start : 7/1/2023


SOURCE(S)
276 - Growth Impact Fees


Estimated Completion 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Construction
Contingency


Projected Budget
USE(S)
Design


Budget     


Policy CS.2.6


Summary of Capital Cost
Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028


To provide a secure parking area for Police vehicles in the Plum St. parking lot. The parking lot will remain open for 
the public. A portion of the parking lot, approximately 25 spaces will be secured with a chain-link fence with 
security gates for Police vehicles. The layout of the parking lot is in the preliminary design phase. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement X Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


100,000$                        100,000$                        -$                                -$                                300,000$                     


: 6/30/2026


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
90,000$                          90,000$                          270,000$                     
10,000$                          10,000$                          30,000$                       


100,000$                        100,000$                        -$                                -$                                300,000$                     


100,000$                        100,000$                        225,000$                     
75,000$                       


100,000$                        100,000$                        -$                                -$                                300,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


FA2301 - PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING MODERNIZATION
Functional Area : Facilities


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy CS.2.6, Goal CS.1, Policy CS.1.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         100,000$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2024 Estimated Completion 


Description
To extend the useful life of the Public Safety building, there are several items that require attention including but 
not limited to replacement of the HVAC system, carpet, flooring, water heaters, light fixtures, fans, etc. In addition, 
the building requires painting (interior and exterior), and the locker rooms also require renovation. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Construction 90,000$                          
Contingency 10,000$                          


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


TOTAL FUNDS 100,000$                        


TOTAL USES 100,000$                        
SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014 25,000$                          
276 - Growth Impact Fees 75,000$                          







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 37


New Expansion
Replacement X Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


100,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                260,000$                     


: 6/30/2026


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
90,000$                          240,000$                     
10,000$                          20,000$                       


100,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                260,000$                     


100,000$                        115,000$                     
145,000$                     


100,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                260,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


FA2202 - SENIOR CENTER MODERNIZATION
Functional Area : Facilities


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy CS.2.6, Goal CS.1, Policy CS.1.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         160,000$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2024 Estimated Completion 


Description
The project includes a facilities condition assessment and design and construction of improvements to modernize 
the existing Senior Center building located at 2525 Charles Avenue. Work will include upgrades to energy system, 
roof replacement, and interior renovations. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Construction 150,000$                        
Contingency 10,000$                          


TOTAL USES 160,000$                        
SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014 15,000$                          


TOTAL FUNDS 160,000$                        


276 - Growth Impact Fees 145,000$                        







Project Origin : End of life cycle Priority Score 44


New Expansion
X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                249,189$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
135,000$                     


15,000$                       
-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                150,000$                     


150,000$                     


-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                150,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


FA1902 - ENERGY UPGRADES
Functional Area : Facilities


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.9, Policy CS.9.1, Policy HS.4.3


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


99,189$                   150,000$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The heating, ventilation, and cooling (HVAC) systems at City Hall and Senior Center have reached the end of their 
useful life and need to be replaced. A portion of the roof at the Senior Center will also need to be replaced. In April 
2021, the AC unit at City Hall broke down and was replaced. This project is contingent upon completion of IN2201 - 
Energy Conservation, Generation, & Storage Assessment.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
In October 2020, City staff began working with Marin Clean Energy’s (MCE’s) Energy Efficiency program to explore opportunities for energy conservation and generation at City owned 
facilities by replacing the HVAC systems and upgrading streetlights. It was determined that the MCE program could not incentivize HVAC replacement project or the upgrade of the 
streetlights. This project was formerly known as FA1706 and FA1801. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Construction 135,000$                        
Contingency 15,000$                          


TOTAL USES 150,000$                        
SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014 150,000$                        


TOTAL FUNDS 150,000$                        







Project Origin : Fowler Lot Re-Use Committee Priority Score


New X Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


922,746$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                1,424,401$                 


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
 $                    130,085 


838,860$                        1,088,860$                 
83,886$                          108,886$                     


922,746$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                1,327,831$                 


922,746$                        1,327,831$                 


922,746$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                1,327,831$                 


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


FA1901 - SENIOR CENTER AUXILIARY PARKING LOT
Functional Area : Facilities


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CE.5, Goal CS.1, Policy GM.4.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


96,570$                   405,085$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
On February 2, 2021 City Council adopted Resolution 2021-07 and awarded a contract to a consultant for the 
preliminary engineering and design for the parking lot. The parking lot will be designed to be a multi-benefit project 
that includes pavement structural section, striping, lighting, bicycle parking, electric vehicle charging stations, 
stormwater capture and retention, and drought tolerant landscaping. The final design will offer the maximum 
number of parking spaces while allowing access for both vehicles and pedestrians and include aesthetic design 
components. On June 7, 2022, City Council directed staff to incorporate the installation of a solar canopy and 
backup battery system at the site. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
On April 16, 1990 City Council adopted Resolution 2380 authorizing the purchase of 2548 Charles Street. At the time of purchase, City Council determined that construction of a Senior 
Center was necessary, and that this property was needed to provide sufficient parking for the Center. The parcel is surrounded by municipal parking lots which serve the Senior Center and 
Old Town Pinole. The Fowler House tenants remained in the properly till 2010 and many discussions took place to determine the best use of the property. It was determined that the house 
had asbestos and lead paint. On July 17, 2018, City Council adopted Resolution 2018-67 to create the Fowler Lot Re-use Committee to evaluate the reuse and redevelopment of the 
property. The Committee evaluated uses for the lot and determined the best use of the property is a parking lot. On October 16, 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2018-93 to 
approve a contract with a construction company to abate and demolish the Fowler house.  The property demolition was completed on March 11, 2019. On July 21, 2020, City Council 
adopted Resolution 2020–68 to accept the final recommendation of the Committee.                                                                                                                                                                                                          


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


TOTAL FUNDS 405,085$                        


Construction 250,000$                        
Contingency 25,000$                          


TOTAL USES 405,085$                        


Design 130,085$                        


SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014 405,085$                        







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 37


New Expansion
Replacement X Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


125,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                250,000$                     


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
112,500$                        225,000$                     


12,500$                          25,000$                       
125,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                250,000$                     


125,000$                     
125,000$                        


125,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                250,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


FA1703 - CITY HALL MODERNIZATION 
Functional Area : Facilities


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy CS.2.6, Goal CS.1, Policy CS.1.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         125,000$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
To extend the useful life of the City hall building, there are several items that require attention including but not 
limited to carpet, flooring, window coverings, light fixtures, etc. The interior and exterior surfaces of the building 
require repainting as the paint system has reached the end of its useful life. Exterior painting is necessary to 
maintain external protection from the environment. Fading, chipping paint, along with water and mildew damage 
necessitates the painting project.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Construction 112,500$                        
Contingency 12,500$                          


TOTAL USES 125,000$                        
SOURCE(S)
276 - Growth Impact Fees 125,000$                        


TOTAL FUNDS 125,000$                        


106 - Measure S 2014







Project Origin : End of life cycle Priority Score 45


New Expansion
X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


450,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 900,000$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
30,000$                           $                       60,000 


400,000$                        800,000$                     
20,000$                          40,000$                       


450,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 900,000$                     


450,000$                        900,000$                     


450,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 900,000$                     
450,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 900,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


FA1702 - CITYWIDE ROOF REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENT 
Functional Area : Facilities


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.1, Goal CS.9, Policy CS.9.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         450,000$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
In October 2022, City staff received quotes for the rehabilitation of the roofs at City Hall, Public Safety Building, 
Senior Center, and the Water Pollution Control Plant. It was determined that the Public Safety building roof needs 
immediate replacement. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
In 2015, comprehensive visual roof inspections were completed by a contractor on various City owned facilities. The purpose of the inspection was to identify the extent, if any, of moisture 
intrusion into the existing roof assemblies, document observed roof system deficiencies, determine the overall condition of the existing roof systems and to estimate the service life of the in-
place roof assemblies. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


TOTAL FUNDS 450,000$                        


Construction 400,000$                        
Contingency 20,000$                          


TOTAL USES 450,000$                        


450,000$                        


Design 30,000$                          


SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014 450,000$                        







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required


X Rehabilitation


75,000$                          -$                                -$                                -$                                150,000$                     


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
75,000$                          150,000$                     


-$                             
75,000$                          -$                                -$                                -$                                150,000$                     


75,000$                          150,000$                     


75,000$                          -$                                -$                                -$                                150,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


PA2301 - TREE MITIGATION
Functional Area : Parks


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal HS.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         75,000$                          


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
Per arborist recommendation, removal of trees in two unmaintained open spaces that were damaged as a result of 
recent severe storms. Staff will seek reimbursement through FEMA for this project. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Construction 75,000$                          
Contingency


TOTAL USES 75,000$                          


TOTAL FUNDS 75,000$                          


SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014 75,000$                          







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score


New Expansion
X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


150,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                150,000$                     


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
135,000$                        135,000$                     


15,000$                          15,000$                       
150,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                150,000$                     


150,000$                        150,000$                     


150,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                150,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


PA2202 - SKATEPARK REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Parks


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CS.2, Goal CS.3, Policy CS 2.6 & 3.1, Policy GM.4.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         -$                                


Project Start : 7/1/2024 Estimated Completion 


Description
The ramps at the skatepark have settled and need to be replaced. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Construction -$                                
Contingency -$                                


TOTAL USES -$                                
SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014 -$                                


TOTAL FUNDS -$                                







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score 16


X New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


65,000.00$                    -$                                -$                                -$                                65,000$                       


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
58,500$                          58,500$                       


6,500$                            6,500$                         
65,000$                          -$                                -$                                -$                                65,000$                       


65,000$                          65,000$                       


65,000$                          -$                                -$                                -$                                65,000$                       


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


PA2201 - POCKET PARKS - GALBRETH RD.
Functional Area : Parks


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CS.3, Policy GM.4.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         -$                                


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
Installation of two ADA compliant benches and waste receptacles within two pocket parks at a suitable location on 
Galbreth Ave. A lot line adjustment may be required to develop the pocket parks.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Construction
Contingency


TOTAL USES -$                                
SOURCE(S)
276 - Growth Impact Fees


TOTAL FUNDS -$                                







Project Origin : Beautification Adhoc Committee Priority Score


X New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


100,000$                        100,000$                        100,000$                        -$                                435,000$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
90,000$                          90,000$                          90,000$                          380,000$                     
10,000$                          10,000$                          10,000$                          45,000$                       


100,000$                        100,000$                        100,000$                        -$                                425,000$                     


100,000$                        100,000$                        100,000$                        425,000$                     


100,000$                        100,000$                        100,000$                        -$                                425,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


PA2101 - INSTALLATION OF HIGH CAPACITY TRASH BINS
Functional Area : Parks


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CS.9, Policy CS.5.1, Policy CS.8.3


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


10,000$                   125,000$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
Installation of high capacity, solar powered compacting trash bins at City parks. There are several concerns related 
to high-capacity trash bins ranging from the cost, proprietary accessories, software, and manual labor required to 
lift and remove heavy trash bags. To get the best value and uniformity at City parks, quotes were obtained from 
qualified vendors to complete a 6 month - 1 year pilot project. Two bins have been ordered for installation and staff 
will monitor their performance and operations prior to order additional bins for other locations. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
In 2019, the City Council established a Beautification Ad Hoc Committee to analyze options for, and to make recommendations to the Council regarding clean-up and beautification projects 
in Pinole. Among other projects, the Committee recommended the installation of high capacity, solar powered compacting trash bins at City parks. City Council approved a budget of $425k 
in FY 2021-22 however staff recommended a pilot project to test the bins and subsequently a mid year budget adjustment was made by Council to reduce the appropriation to $125k for 
the remainder of FY 2022-23.


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Construction 110,000$                        
Contingency 15,000$                          


TOTAL USES 125,000$                        
SOURCE(S)
214 - Solid Waste 125,000$                        


TOTAL FUNDS 125,000$                        







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score 33


New Expansion
Replacement X Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


200,000.00$                  -$                                -$                                -$                                200,000$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
180,000$                        180,000$                     


20,000$                          20,000$                       
200,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                200,000$                     


200,000$                        200,000$                     


200,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                200,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


PA1901 - PINOLE VALLEY PARK SOCCER FIELD REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Parks


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CS.1, Goal CS.3, Policy CS 3.1, Policy GM.4.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         -$                                


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
There are two soccer fields at Pinole Valley Park which are utilized on an annual basis, the Wright Avenue Soccer 
Field at the southerly end, and Savage Avenue Soccer Field at the northern end. Both fields are heavily used by 
soccer leagues and the general public. The Savage Avenue Soccer Field requires substantial rehabilitation which 
includes: upgrading the irrigation system and ongoing turf maintenance. Turf maintenance includes mowing, 
fertilizing, aeration, overseeding, and topdressing.  


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
This project has been delayed pending the development of a Park Master Plan (CIP Project# IN1704).


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Construction
Contingency


TOTAL USES -$                                
SOURCE(S)
276 - Growth Impact Fees


TOTAL FUNDS -$                                







Project Origin : Regulatory Requirement Priority Score 51


New X Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                 -$                                 3,000,000$                     -$                                 3,150,000$                  


: 6/30/2027


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28


2,700,000$                     2,700,000$                  
300,000$                        315,000$                     


-$                                 -$                                 3,000,000$                     -$                                 3,150,000$                  


3,000,000$                     3,150,000$                  


-$                                 -$                                 3,000,000$                     -$                                 3,150,000$                  


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SS2203 - EFFLUENT OUTFALL
Functional Area : Sanitary Sewer


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                            150,000$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The Effluent Outfall project is intended to reduce pressure in the pipe during extreme storm events. Effluent pumping 
capacity of the treatment plant is limited by the capacity of the pipe size at the effluent outfall in Rodeo.  Increasing the 
pipe size at the Effluent Outfall Eductor Station will increase the wet weather effluent pumping capacity and increase 
the lifespan of the effluent pipe by reducing the pressure in the line during storm events. This project requires 
coordination with Rodeo. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


TOTAL FUNDS 150,000$                        


Construction
Contingency 15,000$                          


TOTAL USES 150,000$                        


Design 135,000$                        


SOURCE(S)
500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 150,000$                        







Project Origin : Master Plan Priority Score


New Expansion
X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


800,000$                        800,000$                        800,000$                        800,000$                        4,735,375$                  


: 6/30/2027


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
80,000$                          80,000$                          80,000$                          80,000$                          695,000$                     


640,000$                        640,000$                        640,000$                        640,000$                        3,583,900$                  
80,000$                          80,000$                          80,000$                          80,000$                          421,100$                     


800,000$                        800,000$                        800,000$                        800,000$                        4,700,000$                  


800,000$                        800,000$                        800,000$                        800,000$                        4,100,000$                  


800,000$                        800,000$                        800,000$                        800,000$                        4,700,000$                  


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SS2203 - SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Sanitary Sewer


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


35,375$                   1,500,000$                     


Project Start : 7/1/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
Various improvements to the Sanitary Sewer collection system, as identified in the Sanitary Sewer Collection System 
Master Plan.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
On October 4, 2022, City staff released an RFP for preliminary engineering design services for phase 1 of the Pinon project described in the City’s recently adopted Sanitary Sewer Master 
Plan. On January 18, 2023, a one-year contract was executed with West Valley Construction Company, Inc. for the work.  


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Design 375,000$                        
Construction 1,023,900$                     
Contingency 101,100$                        


TOTAL FUNDS 1,500,000$                     


TOTAL USES 1,500,000$                     
SOURCE(S)
500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 900,000$                        
276 - Growth Impact Fees 600,000$                        







Project Origin : End of life cycle Priority Score 45


New Expansion
X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 425,000$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
315,000$                     


67,500$                       
42,500$                       


-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 425,000$                     


425,000$                     


-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 425,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SS2203 - SECONDARY CLARIFIER REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Sanitary Sewer


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CS.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         425,000$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The Water Pollution Control Plant (WPCP) has five secondary clarifiers which slow the flow to allow the 
microorganisms and other solids to settle to the bottom of the clarifier where they can be returned to aeration 
tanks to continue treating waste. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Secondary Clarifiers 1 and 2 (SC1 and SC 2) were constructed in the early 1970s and are peripheral feed clarifiers. Secondary Clarifiers 3 and 4 (SC 3 and SC 4) were constructed in the early 
1980s and are center feed clarifiers. Secondary Clarifier 5 (SC 5) was constructed in early 2000 and is a center feed, flocculator clarifier. In the first quarter of FY 2022-23, a preliminary 
inspection of the center column of the SC 5 was completed to examine the current condition and determine the scope of work for rehabilitation. In the second quarter of FY 2022-23, it was 
determined that SC 3 & SC 4 also require rehabilitation. Previously, this project was titled, "Secondary Clarifier - Center Column Rehabilitation" which only focused on the rehabilitation work 
required for SC 5. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Construction SC 5 315,000$                        
Construction SC 3, SC 4 67,500$                          
Contingency 42,500$                          


TOTAL FUNDS 425,000$                        


TOTAL USES 425,000$                        
SOURCE(S)
500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 425,000$                        







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion
X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                85,000$                       


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
45,000$                       


5,000$                         
-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                50,000$                       


50,000$                       


-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                50,000$                       


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SS2102 - AIR RELEASE VALVE REPLACEMENTS
Functional Area : Sanitary Sewer


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CS.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


35,000$                   50,000$                          


Project Start : 7/1/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
There are several air relief valves at various locations on the WPCP Effluent Pipeline between the WPCP and the 
Rodeo treated water discharge point. This project includes removal and replacement of the pipe saddle, short pipe 
section, isolation valve, and air relief valve. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Staff has received quotes to replace three air relief valves by the end of FY 2022-23. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Construction 45,000$                          
Contingency 5,000$                            


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


TOTAL FUNDS 50,000$                          


TOTAL USES 50,000$                          
SOURCE(S)
500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 50,000$                          







Project Origin : Regulatory Requirement Priority Score 48


New Expansion
Replacement X Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 100,000$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
6,000$                          


85,000$                       
9,000$                          


-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 100,000$                     


100,000$                     


-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 100,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SS2002 - WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PLANT LAB REMODEL
Functional Area : Sanitary Sewer


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.1, Policy CS.2.6


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         100,000$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The California Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) is responsible for accrediting environmental 
testing labs including the Pinole - Hercules WPCP. The 2019 ELAP inspection results indicated the lab apparatus, 
countertops, and the fume hood are past their useful life and recommended replacement. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Design 6,000$                             
Construction 85,000$                          
Contingency 9,000$                             


TOTAL FUNDS 100,000$                        


TOTAL USES 100,000$                        
SOURCE(S)
500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 100,000$                        







Project Origin : End of life cycle Priority Score 48


New Expansion
X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


2,254,000$                     -$                                 -$                                 3,329,000$                     6,783,000$                  


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
250,000$                        425,000$                     


1,100,000$                     2,161,000$                     4,061,000$                  
154,000$                        400,000$                        654,000$                     


1,254,000$                     -$                                 -$                                 2,811,000$                     5,140,000$                  


500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 2,254,000$                     3,329,000$                     6,783,000$                  


2,254,000$                     -$                                 -$                                 3,329,000$                     6,783,000$                  


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SS1702 - SEWER PUMP STATION REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Sanitary Sewer


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         1,200,000$                     


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The City owns and operates two lift stations to convey flow from low lying areas to high elevations where the flow 
continues by gravity to the wastewater treatment plant. Both pump stations have reached the end of their useful 
life and need to be rehabilitated. The two pump stations are located on San Pablo Ave. and Hazel St. In FY 2019/20, 
this project was renamed to include both pump stations. Previously, this project was titled, “Hazel Street Sewer 
Pump Rehabilitation.”


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
The City recently completed a Sanitary Sewer Master Plan. In FY 2023-24, the Hazel Street Lift Station will be replaced, followed by the replacement of the San Pablo Ave. Lift Station. The 
Hazel Street Lift Station will be replaced in coordination with RO1802. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Design 175,000$                        
Construction 800,000$                        
Contingency 100,000$                        


TOTAL FUNDS 1,200,000$                     


TOTAL USES 1,075,000$                     
SOURCE(S)


1,200,000$                     







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 34


New X Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


700,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 700,000$                     


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
135,000$                        135,000$                     
500,000$                        500,000$                     


65,000$                          65,000$                       
700,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 700,000$                     


700,000$                        700,000$                     


700,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 700,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SW2001 - ROBLE ROAD STORM DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS
Functional Area : Stormwater


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.7, Policy CS.7.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         -$                                 


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The existing system appears to have capacity issues at Roble Ave. and Encina Ave. that warrant review and upgrade. 
This project will assess the collection system for capacity and hydraulic profile and upgrade the system as necessary. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Design
Construction
Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS -$                                 


TOTAL USES -$                                 
SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014







Project Origin : Development Driven Priority Score


X New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  604,634$                      


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
8,276$                          


500,000$                      
49,724$                        


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  558,000$                      


106 - Measure S 2014 500,000$                      
276 - Growth Impact Fees 58,000$                        


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  558,000$                      


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SW1901 - HAZEL STREET STORM DRAIN IMPROVEMENTS
Functional Area : Stormwater


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.7, Policy CS.7.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


46,634$                   558,000$                         


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
The existing stormwater collection is an open trench system and needs to be converted to an underground 
conveyance system to facilitate construction of a through road. This project will include connecting the existing 
storm drain network within Hazel Street between 1087  Hazel St (eastern limits) and 1081 Hazel St. (western limits). 
In January 2020, the City contacted with Schaff and Wheeler to prepare the preliminary design which includes plan 
and profile of the pipe and technical specifications. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Design 8,276$                             
Construction 500,000$                         
Contingency 49,724$                           


TOTAL FUNDS 558,000$                         


TOTAL USES 558,000$                         
SOURCE(S)


58,000$                           
500,000$                         







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


X New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


400,000$                        400,000$                        -$                                -$                                919,900$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
400,000$                        400,000$                        910,000$                     
400,000$                        400,000$                        -$                                -$                                910,000$                     


106 - Measure S 2014 400,000$                        400,000$                        
-$                             


400,000$                        400,000$                        -$                                -$                                910,000$                     TOTAL FUNDS 110,000$                        


Construction 110,000$                        
TOTAL USES 110,000$                        


SOURCE(S)
110,000$                        


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


9,900$                     110,000$                        


Project Start : 07/01/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
This project will install striped bulbouts with flexible bollards, high visibility crosswalks and pavement markings, and 
yield road signage at two intersections (Pear and Plum) on Tennent Ave. In addition, a Rectangular Rapid-Flashing 
Beacon (RRFB) will be installed at Tennent Ave. & Plum St. On October 18, 2022, City Council received information 
and a presentation on traffic safety issues at these intersections. On February 21, 2023, City Council approved 
$110,000 in immediate improvements on Tennent Ave. at the Pear and Plum intersections. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO2304 - SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS AT TENNENT AVE./PEAR & PLUM
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


X New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                154,302$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
154,302$                     


-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                154,302$                     


106 - Measure S 2014 154,302$                     
-$                             


-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                154,302$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO2303 - PINOLE SMART SIGNALS
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         154,302$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The Smart Signals project will develop, manage, and implement ITS initiatives that improve the safety and efficiency 
of multimodal mobility, maximize highway and arterial system throughput, and improve operational efficiency, 
safety, and reduce environmental impact throughout Contra Costa County. Contra Costa Tranportation Authority is 
the project lead and will coordinate the project throughout the county. Twelve traffic signals have been identified 
as candidates for the Smart Signals project. These signals are located on Pinole arterial roadways (Appian Way & 
San Pablo Avenue). 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Deployment of the Smart Signals Project is expected to result in operational and safety improvements for all modes of transportation, such as decrease in travel time and total delay, 
reduction in number of stops and secondary accidents, reduction of fuel consumption and greenhouse gas emissions, and reduction of response time for emergency vehicles. The initial 
cost estimate of construction is $1,499,829 of which CCTA will receive $1,345,527 in OBAG funds. The City's match requirement is $154,302.


General Plan Goals/Policies


Construction 154,302$                        


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


TOTAL FUNDS 154,302$                        


154,302$                        


TOTAL USES 154,302$                        
SOURCE(S)







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 38


X New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  275,000$                      


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
 $                      265,000 


10,000$                        
-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  275,000$                      


239,040$                      
35,960$                        


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  275,000$                      


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO2302 - SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS ON ARTERIAL ROADWAYS
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                          275,000$                         


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
This project will install pedestrian crossing enhancements at three mid-block crossings on arterial roadways. The 
enhancements include continental markings, median refuge islands, advanced stop bars and Rectangular Rapid Flash 
Beacons. The three mid-block crossings are: San Pablo Ave. & Third Ave.; San Pablo Ave. & Quinan St.; and Pinole 
Valley Road & Savage Ave. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Funding for improvements was secured through Cycle 11 HSIP grant funds. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


35,960$                           


TOTAL FUNDS 275,000$                         


10,000$                           
TOTAL USES 275,000$                         


SOURCE(S)


106 - Measure S 2014


Construction
Contingency


265,000$                         


239,040$                         215 - Grant: HSIP  







Project Origin : Pavement Management Program Priority Score 36


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required


X Rehabilitation


250,000$                         -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  250,000$                      


: 6/30/2028


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
25,000$                           25,000$                        


200,000$                         200,000$                      
25,000$                           25,000$                        


250,000$                         -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  250,000$                      


325 - City Street Improvements 250,000$                         250,000$                      


250,000$                         -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  250,000$                      TOTAL FUNDS -$                                  


TOTAL USES -$                                  
SOURCE(S)


Design
Construction
Contingency


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                          -$                                  


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
Based on the most current P-TAP report and field inspections, various segments will be recommended annually for 
rehabilitation. Recommended treatment include patch paving, slurry seal, cape seal, mill and fill. This project 
includes two projects which appeared in previous CIP's known as RO2501 and RO2401.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO2301 - ROAD REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score 28


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required


X Rehabilitation


170,000$                         -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  170,000$                      


: 6/30/2028


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
30,000$                           30,000$                        


120,000$                         120,000$                      
20,000$                           20,000$                        


170,000$                         -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  170,000$                      


100 - General Fund 170,000$                         170,000$                      


170,000$                         -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  170,000$                      


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO2107 - BRANDT ST. IMPROVEMENTS
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CE.4, Goal CS.10, Policy CS.10.2, Policy GM.3.3, Goal CS.10


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                          -$                                  


Project Start : 7/1/2024 Estimated Completion 


Description
Provide improvements on Brandt St. including application of pavement treatments based on type and severity of 
distresses on  existing pavement. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Project Estimate 
FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


TOTAL FUNDS -$                                  


Design
Construction
Contingency


TOTAL USES -$                                  
SOURCE(S)


Projected Budget







Project Origin : Pavement Management Program Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required


X Rehabilitation


655,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                692,805$                     


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
814$                             


623,000$                        623,000$                     
32,000$                          32,000$                       


655,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                655,814$                     


381,082$                        381,082$                     
500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 106,597$                        107,411$                     
325 - City Street Improvements 167,321$                        167,321$                     


655,000$                        -$                                -$                                -$                                655,814$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO2102 - TENNENT AVE. REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy CE.1.4, Policy CS.2.6, Policy CS.3.3, Policy H.3.1, Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


36,991$                   814$                               


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
The construction impacts from the WPCP upgrade project resulted in pavement deterioration. This project will 
rehabilitate Tennent Ave. from San Pablo Ave. to WPCP. In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to 
complete the preliminary engineering for this project.  


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
In preparation of this project, the City retained a consultant to perform internal CCTV on this section of roadway. The inspection was completed in  early 2021. Coordinating collection 
system improvements with street resurfacing projects ensures that sewer improvements are made prior to the resurfacing so that manholes and valve covers may be properly realigned, 
and repairs and replacements are made in a cost-effective manner. This also avoids cutting and patching recently paved streets. The City of Hercules will reimburse $86,430 for this project. 
In addition, this project is being coordinated with RO1902 for efficient implementation. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Design 814$                               
Construction
Contingency


TOTAL USES 814$                               
SOURCE(S)
200 - Gas Tax


TOTAL FUNDS 814$                               


814$                               







Project Origin : Pavement Management Program Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required


X Rehabilitation


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  1,218,792$                  


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
27,222$                        


1,066,562$                  
93,750$                        


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  1,187,534$                  


428,910$                      
377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation 758,624$                      


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  1,187,534$                  


758,624$                         


TOTAL FUNDS 1,187,534$                     


TOTAL USES 1,187,534$                     
SOURCE(S)


428,910$                         200 - Gas Tax


Design 27,222$                           
Construction 1,066,562$                     
Contingency 93,750$                           


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


31,258$                   1,187,534$                     


Project Start : 7/1/2021 Estimated Completion 


Description
The project is currently in the design phase and aims to maximize the funding available to complete rehabilitation 
work beginning at the southern city limit on Pinole Valley Road to the bridge west of Savage Ave. The project will 
include replacement, modification, or installation of a ADA compliant curb ramps, road rehabilitation, and striping. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Based on the 2019  P-TAP report, various segments were recommended for treatment by StreetSaver®. The recommendations were further validated through a comparative pavement 
analysis and coring samples to explore additional treatment options which are not discussed in the P-TAP report. This will allow the City to optimize the available funding. The section of 
roadway selected based on the analysis was Pinole Valley Road from the southern city limits. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO2101 - ARTERIAL REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


X New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                1,405,672$                 


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
14,628$                       


1,020,000$                 
330,372$                     


-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                1,365,000$                 


44,700$                       
Unfunded 1,320,300$                 


-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                1,365,000$                 


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO1902 - PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS AT TENNENT AVE. near RXR
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy CE.1.4, Policy CS.2.6, Policy CS.3.3, Policy H.3.1, Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


40,672$                   1,365,000$                    


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
In 2018, the East Bay Regional Park District completed a trail link to connect Pinole Shores Regional Shoreline to 
Bayfront Park trail. There remains one very small gap on Tennent Ave. from Bayfront Park to Railroad Ave. 
Improvements to Tennent Ave. at the Railroad Crossing will facilitate safe movement of bicycles and pedestrians. 
Since project inception, the scope of work has evolved to include improvements that would maximize parking on 
Railroad Avenue for park users. In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to complete the preliminary 
engineering for this project.  


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
WCCTAC held its STMP Call for Projects in 2018 which committed $100k in funding for preliminary engineering from the 2006 STMP program for this project. City staff also submitted an 
OBAG 3 application in July 2022 to compete for funding for this project. If awarded, the City will need a match of $345k. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Design 14,628$                          
Construction 1,020,000$                    
Contingency 330,372$                        


1,320,300$                    


TOTAL FUNDS 1,365,000$                    


TOTAL USES 1,365,000$                    
SOURCE(S)


44,700$                          325 - Grant: STMP Fees







Project Origin : Development Driven Priority Score 30


X New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


200,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 200,000$                     


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
200,000$                        200,000$                     
200,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 200,000$                     


50,000$                          50,000$                       
Unfunded 150,000$                        150,000$                     


200,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 200,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO1802 - HAZEL STREET GAP CLOSURE (SUNNYVIEW)
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CE.1, Policy CE.1.1, Policy CE.1.4, Policy CE.1.5, Goal CE.3, Policy CS.2.6, Goal HS.1, Goal HS.3, Policy HS 3.4, Goal HS.6


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         -$                                 


Project Start : 7/1/2021 Estimated Completion 


Description
A developer has proposed to develop on a vacant lot identified as APN 402-013-060 at the end of Hazel Street. The 
project proposes the subdivision of the lot into four new parcels and development of single family residences on 
each new parcel, and execution of a development agreement to make public improvements, including the extension 
of Hazel Street for roadway connection to Sunnyview Drive - West end of Hazel St.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
CIP Project SW1901 must be completed prior to this project. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Construction


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


TOTAL FUNDS -$                                 


TOTAL USES -$                                 
SOURCE(S)
276 - Growth Impact Fees







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score


X New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  750,229$                      


: 12/31/2023


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
-$                               


607,348$                      
65,081$                        


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  672,429$                      


106 - Measure S 2014 193,029$                      
325 - Grant: TDA Article 3 129,400$                      
215 - Grant: OBAG 350,000$                      


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  672,429$                      


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO1714 - SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS AT APPIAN WAY AND MARLESTA RD.
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


77,800$                   672,429$                         


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
The key elements affecting the safety of pedestrians and cyclists at the Appian Way and Marlesta Way intersection 
is speed and reduced visibility of approaching traffic due to the topography of the project area. Safety 
improvements are required to improve crossing conditions for pedestrians and bicyclists. In February 2021, the City 
selected a Consultant to complete the preliminary engineering for this project. Grant funds were secured through 
WCCTAC, Transportation Development Act, and OBAG to complete this project. In October 2023, City Council 
awarded a construction contract to Gruendl Inc.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
The City secured grant funds to install a traffic signal at this intersection instead of a HAWK.


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


TOTAL FUNDS 672,429$                         


193,029$                         
129,400$                         


Design -$                                  
Construction 607,348$                         
Contingency 65,081$                           


TOTAL USES 672,429$                         
SOURCE(S)


350,000$                         







Project Origin : End of life cycle Priority Score


New Expansion
X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


28,800,000$                  -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 31,884,899$               


: 6/30/2026


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
4,150,000$                     4,283,579$                  


1,840,583$                  
24,650,000$                   24,650,000$                
28,800,000$                  -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 30,774,162$               


41,394$                        
1,499,189$                  


28,800,000$                   28,800,000$                
28,800,000$                  -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 30,774,162$               


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO1710 - SAN PABLO AVENUE BRIDGE OVER BNSF RAILROAD
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy CS.3.3, Goal H.3, Policy H.3.1, Goal CE.3, Goal CE. 7, Policy CE.7.3, Goal CS.10.


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


1,110,737$             1,974,162$                     


Project Start : 7/1/2017 Estimated Completion 


Description
The San Pablo Avenue bridge over the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad is an integral part of the area’s 
transportation network. The age and condition assessment of the bridge supports replacement. The City was 
approved for initial funding from the Caltrans Highway Bridge Program (HBP). In February 2020, the City awarded a 
contract to a consultant for preliminary engineering (PE) to advance the project. The PE will be completed in two 
phases due to funding limitations. Completion of preliminary design is necessary to develop a final cost estimate for 
the project. Unfunded portions of this project appear in the Unfunded and Unprogrammed project list.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
The total budget identified to complete the PE exceeds the amount of funding Caltrans committed to the project of the State’s share in the current HBP. In October 2022, a draft type 
selection report was submitted to Caltrans for review. This report is the first step to request additional funding allocations from the Caltrans HBP to complete the PS&E phase and 
construction phase of the project. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Project Management 133,579$                        
Planning & Design


-Construction
1,840,583$                     


TOTAL USES 1,974,162$                     
SOURCE(S)


41,394$                           325 - Grant: HBP
1,499,189$                     


300,000$                        


TOTAL FUNDS 1,974,162$                     


133,579$                        
325 - Grant: STMP Fees
215 - Grant: TLC
106 - Measure S 2014
Unfunded







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score 34


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required


X Rehabilitation


100,000$    -$    -$    -$    100,000$    


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
10,000$    10,000$      
80,000$    80,000$      
10,000$    10,000$      


100,000$    -$    -$    -$    100,000$    


100,000$    100,000$    


100,000$    -$    -$    -$    100,000$    TOTAL FUNDS -$    


Design
Construction
Contingency


TOTAL USES -$    
SOURCE(S)
200 - Gas Tax


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


Description
As part of the high school construction project WCCUSD provided road improvements along the school frontage. 
Improvements to Pinole Valley Road - from Shea Dr. to Helena Ct. will extend the useful life of the pavement. The 
existing pavement score is high in this area, so a slurry seal may be the recommended treatment. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


-$    -$    


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO1708 - PINOLE VALLEY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$    -$    -$    -$    200,000$    


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
 $  200,000 


-$    
-$    -$    -$    -$    200,000$    


200,000$    


-$    -$    -$    -$    200,000$    


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


IN2301 - FACILITIES & REAL ESTATE MASTER PLAN
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget  Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$   200,000$    


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The facilities master plan will serve as a roadmap for achieving identified strategic objectives to improve service 
delivery and utilization of real estate and facility assets. The masterplan will serve to aid decision-making on capital 
improvements for a defined list of City owned facilities and provide information on potential major maintenance 
needs (e.g., repairs vs. replace) as applicable.  


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Planning 200,000$    
Contingency


TOTAL USES 200,000$    


TOTAL FUNDS 200,000$    


SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014 200,000$    


Goal CS.1, Policy CS.1.3, Policy CS.2, Policy CS.2.6







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 50,000$                       


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
 $                       50,000 


-$                              
-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 50,000$                       


50,000$                       


-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 50,000$                       


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


IN2201 - ENERGY CONSERVATION, GENERATION AND STORAGE ASSESSMENT
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CS.1 & CS.9, Policy CS.9.1, Goal SE.3, Policy SE.1.3


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         50,000$                          


Project Start : 7/1/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
An energy optimization assessment to identify energy conservation measures, renewable energy generation, and 
storage opportunities. This audit will help the City identify and develop energy investment initiatives for facilities. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Planning 50,000$                          
Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS 50,000$                          


TOTAL USES 50,000$                          
SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014 50,000$                          







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


170,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 200,000$                     


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
 $                       30,000 


170,000$                        170,000$                     
170,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 200,000$                     


170,000$                        200,000$                     


170,000$                        -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 200,000$                     TOTAL FUNDS 30,000$                          


TOTAL USES 30,000$                          
SOURCE(S)
100 - General Fund 30,000$                          


Design 30,000$                          
Construction


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


Policy GM.4.1, Policy CS.2.6, Goal CS.9, Goal HS.4


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         30,000$                          


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
During severe natural hazard events, it is highly likely that utility power will not be available for an extended period 
of time. Critical facilities will need reliable sources of sustained electrical power to continue operations. This project 
will: 1) identify critical facilities in need of back-up power in coordination with an Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) , 
2) assess power loads in each critical facility that requires back-up power, 3) determine the costs and technology 
options including solar battery storage, and 4) make any additional recommendations to Council before advancing 
to construction. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
The Public Safety Building, Fire Station 74, and the Water Pollution Control Plant have stand by generators. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


IN2101 - EMERGENCY POWER FOR CRITICAL FACILITIES
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 60,000$                       


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
 $                       60,000 


-$                              
-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 60,000$                       


60,000$                       


-$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 60,000$                       


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


IN2102 - MUNICIPAL BROADBAND FEASIBILITY
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CS.11, Policy CS.11.2, Policy CS.11.5


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         60,000$                          


Project Start : 7/1/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
A feasibility study to understand the high speed (broadband) connectivity available to community residents, 
businesses, and other organizations in terms of coverage, speed, and cost; determine whether there are gaps 
relative to modern standards; if there are gaps, identify and assess potential City interventions (including public-
private partnerships) with respect to cost, effectiveness, and feasibility; and make a recommendation regarding next 
City steps on digital connectivity as appropriate. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Staff released an Request for Proposals for this effort on April 11, 2023. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Planning 60,000$                          
Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS 60,000$                          


TOTAL USES 60,000$                          
SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014 60,000$                          







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


140,000$                       -$                                -$                                -$                                200,000$                    


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
140,000$                         $                    200,000 


-$                             
140,000$                       -$                                -$                                -$                                200,000$                    


140,000$                        200,000$                     


140,000$                       -$                                -$                                -$                                200,000$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


IN2103 - RECYCLED WATER FEASIBILITY
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy OS.8.1, Policy OS.8.7, Goal SE.9, Policy SE.9.1, Policy SE.9.4


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                         60,000$                          


Project Start : 7/1/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
A feasibility study will allow the City to plan and phase the construction of future recycled water distribution system 
infrastructure. The study will identify potential recycled water customers, evaluate the quantity, quality, and 
recycled water distribution system options to address the needs of potential users in surrounding areas, seek 
opportunities to phase the construction of a recycled water delivery system, and develop planning-level cost 
options for the phased system.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Recycled water delays or eliminates the need to construct more potable water facilities, sustains the economy with increased water supply reliability, protects the environment, safeguards 
investments in parks and landscaping with drought proof or drought resistant water supply, and contributes to a green and healthy environment. In 2019, East Bay Municipal Utility District 
(EBMUD) prepared an Updated Recycled Waster Plan which considered the potential for potable reuse in EBMUD’s water service area. The development of a new recycled water supply for 
the Phillips 66 refinery in Rodeo using effluent from the Pinole-Hercules and Rodeo wastewater treatment plants was among the recommended non-potable reuse projects. This project is 
estimated to deliver up to 3.67 MGD of recycled water to the refinery for use in their boilers and cooling towers. The combined final disinfected effluent from both plants would be pumped 
at the Rodeo Pump Station to the refinery for treatment a new advanced recycled water treatment plan. This project was recommended by EBMUD because it would deliver a large amount 
of water to a single customer, with comparatively few pipelines required due to the short distance between the sources of wastewater and the Phillips 66 Refinery


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Planning 60,000$                          
Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS 60,000$                          


TOTAL USES 60,000$                          
SOURCE(S)
100 - General Fund 60,000$                          







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  100,000$                      


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
 $                      100,000 


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  100,000$                      


325 - Grant: STMP Fees 100,000$                      


-$                                  -$                                  -$                                  -$                                  100,000$                      


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


IN2105 - APPIAN WAY COMPLETE STREETS
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy CE.1.4, Policy CS.2.6, Policy CS.3.3, Policy H.3.1, Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


-$                          100,000$                         


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
Completion of preliminary engineering and design to provide continuous sidewalks and bike lanes along Appian Way 
beginning from unincorporated El Sobrante to about 1500 lineal feet north of the City limit within Pinole. In 
December 2021, City Council approved a Cooperative Funding Agreement with WCCTAC to receive STMP funds to 
complete preliminary design for this project. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
This project will connect with the Contra Costa County’s project to provide continuous sidewalks and bike lanes along Appian Way from San Pablo Dam Rd. in unincorporated El  Sobrante. 
This project will involve coordination with Contra Costa County. The construction phase of this project is unfunded and appears in the Unfunded and Unprogrammed list.


General Plan Goals/Policies


Engineering Design 100,000$                         
TOTAL USES 100,000$                         


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24


SOURCE(S)
100,000$                         


TOTAL FUNDS 100,000$                         







Project Origin : TAPS Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                188,000$                    


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
 $                    170,000 


-$                             
-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                170,000$                    


170,000$                     


-$                                -$                                -$                                -$                                170,000$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


IN2106 - ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal GM.1, Goal GM.3, Policy GM.3.2, Policy CE.1.4, Policy CE.8.2, Goal CS.10


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


18,000.00$             170,000$                       


Project Start : 7/1/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
Development of an Active Transportation Plan will act as a guide for active mobility within and around Pinole. The 
Plan will identify an integrated network of walkways and bikeways that connect Pinole neighborhoods and 
communities to employment, education, commercial, recreational, and tourist destinations. The plan will prioritize a 
set of connected projects, that when fully implemented, will increase active transportation opportunities and make 
it safe and more convenient for people to walk, bike, and use non-auto forms of travel.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
In March 7, 2023, City Council awarded a contract to GHD for the preparation of a Park Master Plan.


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Planning 170,000$                        
Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS 170,000$                       


TOTAL USES 170,000$                       
SOURCE(S)
100 - General Fund 170,000$                        







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


175,000$                       -$                                -$                                -$                                250,000$                    


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
175,000$                         $                    250,000 


-$                             
175,000$                       -$                                -$                                -$                                250,000$                    


175,000$                        250,000$                     


175,000$                       -$                                -$                                -$                                250,000$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


IN1703 - STORM DRAINAGE MASTER PLAN
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget     Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Policy GM.4.1, Policy CS.7.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


75,000$                          


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
Preparation of a storm drain master plan will provide an analysis of the existing collection system. The plan will 
identify system deficiencies related to capacity, functionality, and permit compliance. The plan can serve to guide 
future budget allocations for improvements to the system.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Planning 75,000$                          
Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS 75,000$                          


TOTAL USES 75,000$                          
SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014 75,000$                          







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion
Replacement Renovation
Land/Row Acq. Required
Rehabilitation


-$    -$   -$   -$   165,000$   


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28
 $  150,000 


-$     
-$    -$   -$   -$   150,000$   


150,000$     


-$    -$   -$   -$   150,000$   


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


IN1704 - PARK MASTER PLAN
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget  Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023-24


Year 2
FY 2024-25


Year 3
FY 2025-26


Year 4
FY 2026-27


Year 5
FY 2027-28


Goal CS.3, Policy CS.3.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to-date


15,000.00$     150,000$    


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
This project will prepare a citywide master plan to address the city's long-term needs and goals for parks, 
recreation, and open space. The master plan will identify the City’s current parks and recreation assets,
determine the City’s future parks and recreation needs and priorities, and recommend
capital, operational, and financial strategies to meet the City’s needs.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
In early 2022, City staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit bids to prepare the master plan. On December 20, 2022, the City Council awarded a contract to RJM Design Group for 
the preparation of the City's Master Plan. The consultant partcipated in a kick off meeting with staff in April 2023. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget  Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023-2028USE(S) FY 2023-24
Planning 150,000$     
Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS 150,000$    


TOTAL USES 150,000$    
SOURCE(S)
106 - Measure S 2014 150,000$     







 


 
 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27 
UNFUNDED PROJECTS 


 


#  Unfunded Projects 


UF001 Railroad Avenue Bridge Removal and Replacement 


UF002 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations in City lots 


UF003 Parking lot resurfacing  


UF004 LLAD Landscape Restoration and Improvement 


UF005 Dog Park Restroom Replacement 


UF006 Dog Park resurfacing and fencing improvements 


UF007 Eucalyptus Grove Restoration 


UF008 Fernandez Park Baseball grandstand improvement 


UF009 Repave Trails 


UF010 ADA Ramps  


UF011 Appian Complete Streets 


UF012 Pedestrian Bridge Maintenance (formerly known as Bridge Maintenance) 


UF013 Fernandez Park Improvements 


UF014 Pavement Maintenance  


UF015 I-80/Pinole Valley Rd. Interchange Improvements 


UF016 Shale Hill Retaining wall and sidewalk gap 


UF017 Sidewalks gaps  


UF018 Signal System Upgrades 


UF019 Pinon-1 


UF020 Pinon-2 


UF021 Tennent-1 


UF022 Tennent-2 


UF023 Tree Master Plan 
UF024 San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad 


UF025 Installation of Solar at City Facilities  


UF026 All access weather roads 


UF027 Faria House Renovations 


UF028 San Pablo Avenue Complete Streets 


UF029 Signalized Intersections 


UF030 Pedestrian Safety at Signalized Intersections 


UF031 Safety at Unsignalized Intersections 


UF032 Roadway Segments #1 


UF033 Roadway Segments #2 


UF034 Roadway Segments #3 


UF035 Vehicular Bridge Maintenance 
 
Legend:  


New unfunded projects added  
 







 


  


UF001 - Railroad Avenue Bridge Removal and Replacement 


Project Information             


The Contra Costa County Flood Control and 


Water Conservation District has advised         


removal of the Railroad Avenue Bridge. The 


bridge is a flood barrier. The first step is to                 


determine if the City of Pinole is the responsible 


agency for this project.   


UF002 - Electric Vehicle Charging Stations in City lots 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads/Sanitary Sewer/


Stormwater 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The City desires to promote and encourage the 


use of electric vehicles. With increased adoption 


of alternative fuel vehicles, the need for                 


charging infrastructure is growing. The City 


wishes to install charging stations in city owned 


parking lots. The first step is to complete a load 


study at City owned parking lots to determine 


the electrical capacity at each site. There may 


be significant electrical upgrades necessary to 


install charging stations. Electrical capacity and 


siting determine ultimately determine the cost of 


each project. There are incentives available for 


the charging equipment.  


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Bay Area 


Air Quality Management District, West 


Contra Costa Transportation Authority, 


Marin Clean Energy 







 


  


UF003 - Parking lot resurfacing 


Project Information             


This project is to maintain and enhance 


existing City owned parking facilities and 


infrastructure, to increase parking supply, 


and to support ongoing multi-modal and 


streetscape improvements. Improvements 


include saw cutting and demolition,             


pavement removal, earthwork, pavement 


installation, curb and gutter, striping, and 


signage.  


UF004 - LLAD Landscape Restoration and Improvement 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The Pinole Valley Road Landscape and Lighting 


Assessment District was formed in 2008. The 


City installed various improvements on Pinole 


Valley Road between Henry Avenue and          


Ramona Street. The district provides                          


maintenance to traffic signals, streetlights,                


median landscaping, irrigation for landscaping, 


electricity to traffic signals and streetlights, and 


graffiti removal. This project will maintain and 


restore turf, shrubs, plants and trees within the 


District. In FY 2022/23, this work was completed 


for Zone A (between I-80 and Henry Ave.)  


Origin: LLAD Report 


 


Budget Unit: LLAD 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 345 


& 348 







 


  


UF005 - Dog Park Restroom Replacement 


Project Information             


The existing restroom located at the Dog 


Park is beyond its useful life and requires 


replacement.  


UF006 - Dog Park resurfacing and fencing improvements 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:  - 


Resurfacing and fencing improvements 


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   







 


  


UF007 - Eucalyptus Grove Restoration 


Project Information             


The open space located between the Old Town 
area between John St. and Pinole Valley Road 
is forested with Eucalyptus trees. In 2014, a 
Safety Inspection was conducted by a                 
consultant. A total of 8 trees were                         
recommended for removal, and root crown          
excavation was recommended for 3 trees. 2 
trees were determined to be hollow and                            
recommended for further investigation to            
evaluate the level of internal decay. In 2018, the 
City hired a company to remove 20 Eucalyptus 
trees in the area. There are still many trees left 
and many of the prior trees were felled with the 
trunks remaining on site. This project will        
remove the remaining trees, both standing and, 
on the ground, and regreen this area with native 
trees.  


UF008 - Fernandez Park Baseball grandstand improvement 


Project Information      


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The current grandstand is aging and                


requires increased maintenance to               


maintain its serviceability.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   







 


  


UF009 - Repave Trails 


Project Information             


The City’s goal is to develop safe,                   


connected, and comfortable bicycle and 


pedestrian facilities for people of all ages 


and abilities. Repaving trails will enhance 


trail access from the City ’s roadway                   


network to encourage alternative modes of 


transportation. The Active Transportation 


Plan is underway and will identify a trail 


network and recommend improvements.  


UF010 - ADA Ramps 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


This project involves removing barriers to 


accessibility for persons using wheelchairs 


or other personal assistance devices and 


improving pedestrian accessibility and 


safety by reconstructing or upgrading curb 


ramps at various locations throughout the 


City.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   







 


  


UF011 -  Appian Complete Streets 


Project Information             


This project will provide continuous side-


walks and bike lanes along Appian Way 


from San Pablo Dam Rd. in unincorporated 


El Sobrante to about 1500 lineal feet north 


of the city limit within the City of Pinole. 


The City received STMP funds                 


from West Contra Costa Transportation 


Authority for preliminary design. The            


construction phase remains unfunded.  


UF012 - Pedestrian Bridge Maintenance  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $970,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  - 


Maintenance of pedestrian bridges as 


identified in the Pedestrian Bridge                      


Inspection Reports completed by Quincy 


Engineering, Inc. In FY 2023/24 there is 


$50,000 budgeted in the operating budget 


for maintenance activities. 


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $224,700 


   


Potential Funding Sources:   







 


  


UF013 - Fernandez Park Improvements 


Project Information             


Renovations to the baseball field to                 


decrease water and energy usage and              


increase accessibility and safety.  


UF014 - Pavement Maintenance  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $850,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The City uses a pavement management 


software known as StreetSaver to                  


strategize the most cost effective method 


to extend the pavement life. Pavement 


Maintenance is necessary to maintain the 


City’s pavement network. Deferred           


maintenance results in increased costs 


over time.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $42,000,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 200 


and Fund 106 







 


  


UF015 - I-80/ Pinole Valley Rd. Interchange Improvements  


Project Information             


This project will widen Pinole Valley Road 


ramp terminal intersections at I-80 to                   


provide a dedicated right turn lane to the 


eastbound and westbound I-80 on ramps. 


This project will also provide crossing                  


enhancements at the Pinole Valley Road 


and I-80 intersection.  


UF016 - Shale Hill Retaining wall and sidewalk gap  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $10,959,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


Shale Hill is located on San Pablo Ave. 


near Oak Ridge Road. The cut slope 


above the pavement is comprised of shale 


which is loose and sloughs onto the road. 


There is no sidewalk in this area because 


the toe of the embankment is uncontrolled 


and there is inadequate space to                      


accommodate a sidewalk. Staff has not 


been successful in securing grant funds for 


this project.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   







 


  


UF017 - Sidewalk gaps 


Project Information             


This project will address sidewalk gaps by 


installing public sidewalks where sidewalks 


are missing on one or both sides of the 


street. This work will be coordinated with 


other construction projects. Sidewalk gaps 


often exist in places with site constraints 


(i.e. right of way, grade/slopes, or utility 


conflicts) or are adjacent to properties that 


have been required to provide sidewalks in 


the past due to land uses or ownerships. 


Locations for repair will be selected based 


on site conditions, pedestrian safety, and 


adjacent property attributes.  


UF018 - Signal System Upgrades  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


This project will upgrade various aspects 


of the City’s traffic signal system including: 


traffic signal controller equipment, vehicle 


detection, traffic signal arms and heads, 


battery backup systems, and                          


communications  systems to reduce                 


congestion and improve safety for the                


Pinole community.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   







 


  


UF019 - Pinon-1 


Project Information             


This project involves replacement of the 


approximately pipeline along San Pablo 


Ave., Roble Ave., Pinon Ave, and Orleans 


Avenue. In FY 2022/23, the City                          


contracted with a consultant to complete 


phase 1 of preliminary engineering and  


design for this project.  


UF020 - Pinon-2 


Project Information      


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate: $4,482,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


This project involves replacement of the 


approximately pipeline along San Pablo 


Ave., Pinon Ave, Appian Way, and                


Meadow Avenue.  


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate: $1,866,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:   







 


  


UF021 - Tennent-1 


Project Information             


This project includes the replacement of 


pipeline along Tennent Avenue and inside 


the Water Pollution Control Plan.   


UF022 - Tennent-2 


Project Information      


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate: $2,664,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


This project involves replacement of the 


approximately pipeline along Tennent            


Avenue. 


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate: $4,239,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:   







 


  


UF023 - Tree Master Plan  


Project Information             


In 2019, the City Council established a 


Beautification Ad Hoc Committee to                 


analyze options for, and to make                          


recommendations to Council regarding 


clean-up and beautification projects in                  


Pinole. Among other projects, the                     


Committee recommended the development 


of a Tree Master Plan to inventory the                  


existing trees, and to develop a plan for 


managing the tree inventory, including 


finding tree planting opportunities.  


UF024 - San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad 


Project Information      


Origin: Beautification AdHoc Committee  


 


Budget Unit:  


 


Cost Estimate: $375,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Cal Fire 


Urban and Community Forestry Grant 


Program 


This project will replace the existing               


thirteen span reinforced concrete span 


structure over the Burlington Northern 


Santa Fe Railroad adjacent to San Pablo 


Avenue at the easterly limits of the City. 


On 02/18/20, Council awarded a contract 


to a Consultant to begin the preliminary 


engineering (PE) for this project (CIP               


Project RO1710). The PE will be                       


completed in two phases due to funding 


limitations. The first phase was necessary 


to develop a   final cost estimate to                           


facilitate pursuing additional funding                        


required to complete all phases including 


construction.  


Origin: End of life cycle 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $28,800,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 213, 


Fund 214, and Economic Stimulus funds.  







 


  


UF025 - Installation of Solar at City Facilities 


Project Information             


This project involves procurement and               


installation of solar panels at City owned 


facilities to offset the City ’s electricity  


consumption and  reduce the greenhouse 


gas impacts.  


UF026 - All access weather roads 


Project Information      


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The General Plan, Chapter 8 discusses  


improvement of open space management 


to reduce wildfire risks. There is a desire 


to have improved, all-weather access 


roads through open space to improve ac-


cess to and from Hercules and El Sobrante 


to shorten response times and improve              


mutual aid.  


Origin: General Plan  


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:    







 


  


UF027 - Faria House Renovations 


Project Information             


The building commonly referred to as the 


“Faria House” is a two-story residence 


constructed in about 1890 and originally 


located at what is now 1301 Pinole Valley 


Road. In 2005, the Faria House was                 


relocated to 2100 San Pablo Avenue. On 


June 7, 2022, City Council directed staff 


pursue hazard remediation and renova-


tions to create a lower-level office, and up-


per-level warm shell. This project was later 


unfunded by City Council.   


UF028 - San Pablo Avenue Complete Streets  


Project Information      


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate: $420,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


A complete streets plan would create a 


new vision for San Pablo Avenue, to  


transform it into a place where people of 


all ages and abilities can travel safely and 


comfortably whether walking, bicycling, 


riding transit, or driving  


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Infrastructure Assessment 


 


Cost Estimate: $200,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:                  


Subregional Transportation Mitigation 


Program (STMP) funds  







 


  


UF029 - Signalized Intersections 


Project Information             


Improvement to signal hardware, signal 


timing, or protected left turn phases at:  


• Appian Way & Fitzgerald Drive 


• San Pablo & Tennent Ave. 


• Appian Way & Canyon Dr./Tara Hills 


• Pinole Valley Rd./Tennent Ave./Ellerhorst St.  


• San Pablo Ave. & Pinole Valley Rd.  


• San Pablo Ave. & Pinon Ave./Appian Way 


• Pinole Valley Rd. & Estates Ave.  


 


Refer to the LRSP document for detailed 


recommendations.  


UF030 - Pedestrian Safety at Signalized Intersections  


Project Information      


Origin: Local Road Safety Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Streets & Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $183,792 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Highway 


Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 


Installation of advance stop bars before 


crosswalk, raised median on approaches, 


raised pavement markers and striping 


through intersection at: 


• Appian Way & Fitzgerald Drive 


• San Pablo & Tennent Ave. 


• Appian Way & Canyon Dr./Tara Hills 


• Pinole Valley Rd./Tennent Ave./Ellerhorst St.  


• San Pablo Ave. & Pinole Valley Rd.  


• Fitzgerald Drive and Best Buy Parking Lot 


• Pinole Valley Rd. & Estates Ave.  


 


Refer to the LRSP document for detailed 


recommendations.  


Origin: Local Road Safety Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $514,548 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Highway 


Safety Improvement Program (HSIP)                 







 


  


UF031 - Safety at Unsignalized Intersections 


Project Information             


Install intersection lighting, install/upgrade 


larger or additional stop signs or other            


intersection warning/regulatory signs, or 


install RRFB: 


• Walter Ave. & San Pablo Ave.  


• Pinole Valley Rd. & Simas Ave. 


• Pinole Valley Rd. & Wright Ave. 


• Pinole Valley Rd. & Rafaela St. 


• Wright Ave. & Carol St.  


• Simas Ave. & Moraga Dr. 


 


Refer to the LRSP document for detailed 


recommendations.  


UF032 - Roadway Segments # 1 


Project Information      


Origin: Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP) 


 


Budget Unit: Streets & Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $879,830 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Highway 


Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 


Install segment lighting, or install/upgrade 


signs with new fluorescent sheeting, or       


install delineators, reflectors/object                


markers. 


• Pinole Valley Rd: San Pablo Ave. to Collins 


Ave. 


• San Pablo Ave.: Oak Ridge Rd. to                 


Pinole Valley Rd.  


• San Pablo Ave.: Golden Gate to Del Monte Dr. 


• Tara Hills: Kilkenny Way to Appian Way 


• Walter Ave: North Terminus to San Pablo Ave. 


• Fitzgerald Dr.: Jovita Ln. to Appian Way 


• Appian Way: San Pablo Ave. to Michael Dr. 


• Tennent Ave.: San Pablo Ave. to Pinole Valley 


Rd.  


 


Refer to the LRSP document for detailed 


recommendations.  


Origin: Local Road Safety Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $1,469,474 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Highway 


Safety Improvement Program (HSIP)                 







 


  


UF033 - Roadway Segments # 2 


Project Information             


Install centerline rumble strips/stripes, or 


install edge-lines and centerlines, or install 


RRFB 


• Pinole Valley Rd: San Pablo Ave. to Collins 


Ave. 


• San Pablo Ave.: Oak Ridge Rd. to                 


Pinole Valley Rd.  


• San Pablo Ave.: Golden Gate to Del Monte Dr. 


• Tara Hills: Kilkenny Way to Appian Way 


• Walter Ave: North Terminus to San Pablo Ave. 


• Tennent Ave.: San Pablo Ave. to Pinole Valley 


Rd.  


 


Refer to the LRSP document for detailed 


recommendations.  


UF034 - Roadway Segments # 3 


Project Information      


Origin: Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP) 


 


Budget Unit: Streets & Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $914,375 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Highway 


Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 


Implement road diet, or install dynamic/


variable speed warning signs, or install/


upgrade pedestrian crossing  


• Pinole Valley Rd: San Pablo Ave. to Collins 


Ave. 


• San Pablo Ave.: Oak Ridge Rd. to                 


Pinole Valley Rd.  


• Tara Hills: Kilkenny Way to Appian Way 


• Fitzgerald Dr.: Jovita Ln. to Appian Way 


• Appian Way: San Pablo Ave. to Michael Dr. 


 


Refer to the LRSP document for detailed 


recommendations.  


Origin: Local Road Safety Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $1,483,510 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Highway 


Safety Improvement Program (HSIP)                 







 


  


UF035 - Vehicular Bridge Maintenance 


Project Information             


Maintenance of vehicular bridges as                 


identified in the Caltrans Bridge Inspection 


Reports. The latest bridge inspection               


issued in May 2023, contains                           


recommendations for three bridges near:  


• PVHS High School on Pinole Valley Rd. 


• Wright Ave. on Pinole Valley Rd. 


• On Simas Ave. near Pinole Valley Rd. 


Origin: Caltrans Bridge Inspection 


 


Budget Unit: Streets & Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 







APPENDIX I: Capital Improvement Plan consistency with General Plan 


Funding is estimated for specific projects or asset plans in the FY 2023/24 – 2027/28 Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) which support the goals and policies of following elements of the 
General Plan: 


• Community Character (CC)
• Growth Management (GM)
• Land Use & Economic Development (LU)
• Housing (H)
• Circulation Element (CE)
• Community Services and Facilities (CS)
• Health and Safety (HS)
• Natural Resources and Open Space (OS)
• Sustainability Element (SE)


The acroynms and associated General P lan goals/policies are listed on individual project 
sheets.  


The FY 2023/24 – 2027/28 CIP includes funding for projects over the next five (5) fiscal years 
that support General Plan policies and enhance public infrastructure, amenities, and services in 
Pinole. The CIP is consistent with and helps implement the following General Plan goals and 
policies: 


Community Character Element 


GOAL CC.1 Maintain Pinole’s unique qualities and sense of place to preserve the established 
historic and small-town character of the city. 


POLICY CC.1.2 Require all new development to incorporate high-quality site design, 
architecture and planning to enhance the overall quality of the built environment in Pinole 
and create a visually interesting and aesthetically pleasing town environment. 


POLICY CC.1.3 To enhance a sense of arrival and create a strong appealing image that 
promotes community identity, the City shall develop community entry features at key 
gateways or city entries along Interstate 80. Entryways shall incorporate landscaping, 
trees, structural architectural elements, signage and public art. 


POLICY CC.1.5 Encourage project compatibility, interdependence and support with 
neighboring uses, especially between commercial and mixed-use centers and the 
surrounding residential neighborhoods. Uses should relate to one another with pedestrian 
connections, transit options, shared parking, landscaping, public spaces, and the 
orientation and design of buildings. 


GOAL CC.2 Emphasize and enhance the visual and physical connection between the city’s 
natural environment and the community’s quality of life. 


POLICY CC.2.1 Provide visual and physical connections between the natural environment 
and the built environment through careful site design, building placement, architectural 
features that allow views of Pinole’s unique environment such as ridgelines or the San 







 


 
 


Pablo Bay shoreline, public access to open space such as via the Bay Trail, and the use 
of native vegetation in the urban environment such as for landscape buffers for sidewalk 
areas and street trees. 


POLICY CC.2.2 Preserve natural resources within the built environment, including trees, 
marshes, creeks and hillsides. 


GOAL CC.5 Enhance the quality of life in Pinole by acknowledging the cultural diversity and by 
promoting, preserving and sustaining the cultural and performing arts. 


POLICY CC.5.1 Celebrate the city’s cultural diversity through public art, cultural centers 
and community events for the benefit and enjoyment of all residents. 


POLICY CC.5.2 Develop programs and facilities that promote the cultural and performing 
arts in Pinole. 


Growth Management Element 


GOAL GM.1 Regional Planning. Support cooperative transportation, land use and public service 
planning in Contra Costa County. 


POLICY GM.1.1 West Contra Costa County Planning Activities. Achieve efficient public 
service delivery by coordinating with affected jurisdictions and agencies concerning 
public and private developments. 


GOAL GM.3 Efficient Transportation. Support land use patterns that make efficient use of the 
transportation system and enhance public safety.  


POLICY GM.3.1 Transportation Management. Make more efficient use of the regional and 
subregional transportation system. 


POLICY GM.3.3 Provide Adequate Transportation Facilities and Services. Provide 
adequate transportation facilities while maintaining neighborhood integrity. 


POLICY GM.3.7 Mobility-Impaired. Support efforts to provide safe and convenient 
transportation systems for all citizens of Pinole, particularly mobility-impaired individuals. 


GOAL GM.4 Compact Development and Service Areas. Encourage infill and redevelopment in 
areas that are already served by utilities, infrastructure and public services. 


POLICY GM.4.1 Planning for Present and Future Community Needs. Plan for, provide 
and maintain a level of public infrastructure facilities and services that adequately serves 
the present and future needs of the community. 


Land Use & Economic Development Element  


GOAL LU.1 Preserve and enhance the natural resources, high-quality residential neighborhoods 
and commercial areas, and small-town (semi-rural) character of Pinole. 


POLICY LU.1.3 Establish and implement a continuing program of civic beautification, 
gateway or entryway enhancement, tree planting, maintenance of homes and streets, and 
other measures which will promote an aesthetically desirable environment and attractive 
neighborhood areas. 







 


 
 


GOAL LU.4 Preserve and strengthen the identity and quality of life of Pinole’s residential 
neighborhoods. 


POLICY LU.4.1 Ensure all new development, renovation or remodeling preserves and 
strengthens Pinole’s residential neighborhoods by requiring projects to be harmoniously 
designed and integrated with the existing neighborhood. 


GOAL LU.6 Protect and enhance the natural resources of the San Pablo Bay waterfront for the 
enjoyment of Pinole residents.  


 POLICY LU.6.3    Provide waterfront parks, pedestrian pathways and recreation areas that 
are safe, accessible, and attractive for public use. 


Housing Element 


GOAL H.2 Protect Existing Character and Heritage. Protect and enhance the integrity and 
distinctive character and heritage of Pinole encouraging the development of high quality, well-
designed housing and conserving existing housing. 
 


POLICY H.2.4 Maintain Existing Housing and Neighborhood Amenities.  Maintain Pinole’s 
lifestyle characteristics by encouraging the maintenance of existing housing stock, and in 
particular housing with historic value, and preserving the amenities of existing 
neighborhoods. 


GOAL H.3 Provide Adequate Services and Facilities. Provide adequate services and facilities to 
meet the needs of the city’s current and future population.  


POLICY H.3.1 Plan For Public Facility and Services Needs. Future development shall be 
planned based on public facility and service capacity, community-wide needs, sound 
citywide and neighborhood planning and public improvement programming. 


POLICY H.3.4 Encourage new pedestrian-oriented development. Encourage new 
development and redevelopment that places residences in close proximity to a variety of 
services and facilities. 


Circulation Element  


GOAL CE.1 Reduce vehicle miles traveled and encourage the use of public transit. 
POLICY CE.1.1 Encourage strategic growth that concentrates future development along 
Pinole’s three primary transit corridors (San Pablo Avenue, Appian Way and Pinole 
Valley Road).  


POLICY CE.1.3 Encourage development that is sensitive to both local and regional 
transit measures and that promotes the use of alternative modes of transportation.   


POLICY CE.1.4 Encourage maximum utilization of the existing public transit system and 
alternate modes of transportation in Pinole.   


GOAL CE.3 Provide timely input and effective means (as appropriate) of programming street and 
highway improvements to maintain the objective peak hour level of service without detrimentally 
impacting community character or commercial activity. 







 


 
 


 POLICY 3.2. Maintain roadway network at or above established LOS thresholds.  


GOAL CE.4 Establish programs to support sidewalk, trail and street enhancements, where 
feasible. 
 


POLICY CE.4.5 Inventory sidewalk conditions to identify opportunities for enhancements 
to the circulation system and to help prioritize repair and maintenance activities as funding 
becomes available. 


GOAL CE.5 Provide adequate parking and loading facilities while encouraging alternative means 
of transportation.  


GOAL CE.7 Support bicycle use as a mode of transportation by enhancing infrastructure to 
accommodate bicycle and rides.  


POLICY CE.7.1 Enhance the City’s Bikeway network through the use of Class I, II, and III 
bikeways. 


POLICY CE.7.3 Establish a network of multi-use paths to facilitate safe and direct off-
street bicycle and pedestrian travel.  


Community Services and Facilities Element 


GOAL CS.1 Provide safe, attractive and efficiently designed infrastructure and sustainable 
facilities to serve the public. 


POLICY CS.1.1 The City will strive to provide safe, attractive and efficiently designed 
facilities for public and quasi-public organizations. 


POLICY CS.1.3 The City will endeavor to provide convenient access to community 
facilities and services to all areas of the community. 


GOAL CS.2 Ensure and maintain a high level of public safety in the community. 


POLICY CS.2.6 The City will continue to fund the repair, maintenance and expansion of 
facilities to respond to evolving service needs. 


GOAL CS.3 Provide adequate and high-quality recreational opportunities and programs for the 
community. 


POLICY CS.3.1 Continue to provide a variety of recreational opportunities that serve and 
represent all aspects of the community. 


POLICY CS.3.3 Expand and organize a multi-use trail system. 


GOAL CS.6 Provide adequate, economical and dependable wastewater collection service and 
treatment. 


POLICY CS.6.1 The City shall continue to make capital improvements to the wastewater 
collection and treatment system to maintain system capability and reliability. 


GOAL CS.7 Minimize flooding. 







 


 
 


POLICY CS.7.1 The City will ensure that the storm drain system has adequate capacity 
to minimize street flooding and, where feasible, shall expand the capacity of the system 
to control storm flows. 


GOAL CS.9 Provide economical and dependable community services while conserving energy 
resources. 


POLICY CS.9.1 The City will seek opportunities to improve the energy efficiency of 
facilities and operations. 


GOAL CS.10 Provide safe, efficient roadway infrastructure to support multiple modes of 
transportation and to meet existing and future circulation needs. 


POLICY CS.10.2 The City will update, where possible, the existing roadway network to 
enhance pedestrian, bicycle and transit circulation while maintaining safe vehicular 
circulation. 


Health and Safety Element 


GOAL HS.1 Minimize the potential for loss of life, injury, damage to property, economic and social 
dislocation, and unusual public expense due to natural and man-made hazards. 


GOAL HS.2 Protect the community from the risk of flood damage and improve surface water 
quality. 


POLICY HS.2.4 Continue to monitor studies that identify anticipated changes in 
sea level and create appropriate standards and improvements to minimize flood 
risks. 


POLICY HS.2.5 Establish appropriate capital improvements and management programs 
to reduce wet weather sewer treatment demand and avoid discharge to the shallow water 
outfall. 


GOAL HS.3 Minimize hazards of soil erosion, weak and expansive soils, potentially 
hazardous soils materials, other hazardous materials, geologic instability and 
seismic activity. 
 


POLICY HS.3.5 Require proper handling, storage, disposal and cleanup of hazardous 
materials to prevent leakage, potential explosions, fires or the escape of harmful gases 
and to prevent individually innocuous materials from combining to form hazardous 
substances, especially at the time of disposal. 


GOAL HS.4 Ensure that government agencies, citizens and businesses are prepared for an 
effective response and recovery in the event of emergencies or disasters.  


POLICY HS.4.1 Continue to provide essential emergency public services during natural 
catastrophes 


POLICY HS.4.3 Incorporate technological enhancements in new and substantially 
remodeled structures and facilities to support and improve emergency services. 







 


 
 


GOAL HS.6 Support multiple forms of transportation and a circulation system design that reduces 
vehicle trips and emissions. 


POLICY HS.6.1 Promote and encourage walking and bicycling as viable forms of 
transportation to services, shopping and employment. 


GOAL HS.7 Ensure that all new development meets or exceeds state and federal water quality 
standards.  


POLICY HS.7.1 Support Regional, state and federal clean water programs.  


POLICY HS.7.3 Reduce the transport of runoff and surface pollutants.  


POLICY HS.7.6 Establish appropriate capital improvements and management programs 
to reduce wet weather sewer treatment demand and avoid discharge to the shallow water 
outfall.  


Natural Resources and Open Space Element  


GOAL OS.1 Ensure the preservation of natural resources by determining appropriate land use 
and compatibility with natural resources and open space.  


POLICY OS.1.2 Agency Cooperation. Work with Federal, State and local regulatory and 
trustee agencies to promote the long-term sustainability of local natural resources. 


Sustainability Element 


GOAL SE.3 The City will reduce its contribution to climate change and mitigate and adapt to the 
effects of climate change as appropriate.   


POLICY SE.3.1 Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from City operations and community 
sources by a minimum of 15 percent below current or baseline levels by the year 2020.     


POLICY SE.3.4 Reduce GHG emissions by reducing vehicle miles traveled and by 
increasing or encouraging the use of alternative fuels and transportation technologies. 


POLICY SE.1.3 Enhance the energy efficiency of all City facilities. 


GOAL SE.7 Air quality will be maintained and improved for the City of Pinole and the Bay Area 
as a region and not decline below levels measured in early 1990’s.  


POLICY SE 7.3 Support efforts to comprehensively address air quality issues through 
education, regulation, and innovation.  


GOAL SE.8 Utilize transit options and reduce vehicle miles traveled and single-occupancy vehicle 
use. 


POLICY SE.8.7 Work to improve Pinole’s pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure and to 
meet the needs of all pedestrians and bicyclists. 


POLICY SE.8.10 Support and promote the use of low- and zero-emissions vehicles, 
alternative fuels, and other measures to directly reduce emissions from motor vehicles.  


Community Character Element 
 







 


 
 


GOAL CC.1 Maintain Pinole’s unique qualities and sense of place to preserve the 
established historic and small-town character of the city. 
 


POLICY CC.1.2 Require all new development to incorporate high-quality site design, 
architecture and planning to enhance the overall quality of the built environment in 
Pinole and create a visually interesting and aesthetically pleasing town environment. 
POLICY CC.1.3 To enhance a sense of arrival and create a strong appealing image 
that promotes community identity, the City shall develop community entry features at key 
gateways or city entries along Interstate 80.  Entryways shall incorporate landscaping, 
trees, structural architectural elements, signage, and public art. 







 


 
 


APPENDIX II: Priorirization Matrix Category Scoring Guidelines 
 


1. Regulatory Compliance – Compliance with regulatory mandates issued by agencies likes 
California State Water Resources Control Board, California Department of Resources, 
Recycling and Recovery, Department of Fish and Wildlife, the San Francisco Bay 
Conservation and Development Commission, or other County, State and federal laws. This 
also includes the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices, and self-imposed City ordinances. The score should be based on the answers to the 
following example questions: 


a. Does the proposed project address a current regulatory mandate? 
b. Will the proposed project proactively address a foreseeable (within the next 5 years) 


regulatory mandate? 
 
Scoring scale: 


 


0  2-3  5 
The project does 
not address a 
regulatory 
compliance issue 


 The project provides a 
short-term fix for an 
existing regulatory 
compliance issue or for 
one anticipated in the near 
future  


 The project resolves 
a pressing or long-
term regulatory 
compliance issue 


 
2. Health/Safety – Projects that improve the overall health and safety of the community such as 


multi-purpose trails, transportation safety improvements, new recreation facilities, address 
safety issues at City facilities, enhancements to police, fire, and emergency medical services. 
The score should be based on answers to the following example questions: 
a. Does the proposed project impact the health and wellbeing or safety of Pinole residents 


and/or employees? 
b. Does the project mitigate a serious risk or liability health/safety issue and to what degree? 
c. Does the project help assist the City to respond more effectively and efficiently to 


emergencies throughout the community? 


Scoring scale: 


 
0  2-3  5 


The project does 
not impact the 
health and/or 
safety of the 
community 


 The project addresses a 
serious health and/or safety 
issue that has a limited 
impact or addresses a less-
serious issue but serves the 
health and or safety of the 
broader community 


 The project directly 
addresses a 
serious health 
and/or safety issue 
that has a 
widespread impact 
and/or improves 
the health of the 
community  


 







 


 
 


3. Project Dependency/Bundling– The completion of the proposed project is complementary to 
the completion of a precursor capital project/master plan or the proposed project would be 
implemented efficiently if it was coordinated with another capital project. A project that is not 
needed for many years would score lower than a project that needs to be completed before 
another project can start. The score should be based on answers to the following example 
questions: 


a. When is the proposed project needed? 
b. Do any other projects require the proposed project to be completed first? 
c. Does the proposed project require other projects to be completed first? 
d. Can the proposed project be completed in conjunction with another project for 


coordinated, efficient implementation? 
 
Scoring scale: 


 


0  2-3  5 
The project does 
not have a project 
dependency  


 The project can be 
completed in conjunction 
with another project for 
coordinated, efficient 
implementation   


 The project must be 
completed before 
another priority project 
can start 


 


4. Long-Term Planning – General Plan, Three-Corridor Specific Plan, 2020-2025 Strategic Plan, 
Long-Term Financial Plan, Pinole Economic Development Strategy, Master Plans, Emergency 
Operations Plan, Communication and Engagement Plan, Climate Action Plan, Local Road 
Safety Plan, Active Transportation Plan, Parks Master Plan, and departmental strategic plans 
which serve as a resource for the City to meet goals set forth by City departments, advisory 
boards and commissions, and the community at-large. Plans include documents that have 
been prepared internally to assure consistent adherence to industry best practices, as well as 
those documents that are created with the assistance of outside consultants. A component of 
long-term planning includes public discussion and/or public engagement. The score should be 
based on the answers to the following example questions: 


a. Is the proposed project contained in one or more of the City’s long-term planning 
documents? 


b. Is the proposed project listed as a high priority? 
 
Scoring scale: 
 


0  2-3  5 
The project is 
not part of any 
long-term 
planning 
document 


 The project is 
included in a long-
term planning 
document, but may 
not be high priority  


 The project is included 
in a long-term planning 
document and is a high 
priority 


 







 


 
 


5. State of Infrastructure – Projects that address failing infrastructure (i.e., sidewalks, streets, 
lighting, municipal buildings, recreation facilities) or facilities that have exceeded their useful 
life. The score should be based on answers to the following example questions: 


a. Does the proposed project maintain the condition or value of existing infrastructure? 
b. Does the proposed project avoid potential failure due to substandard conditions? 
c. Will the proposed project address a facility that is outdated or exceeded its useful life? 
d. Is the proposed project supported by a life cycle analysis of repair versus replacement 


and a master plan for that type of asset? 


Scoring scale: 


 
0  2-3  5 


The project 
maintains 
existing 
infrastructure 
at current 
service levels  
 


 The project extends the 
service life of an existing 
asset or adds new 
infrastructure to support 
growth 


 The project addresses 
existing infrastructure 
which has reached the 
end of its useful life and is 
supported by a life cycle 
analysis of repair vs. 
replacement 


 


6. Operating Budget Impact – Some proposed projects may impact the operating budget for the 
next few years or for the life of the facility. Some proposed projects can offer cost savings or 
revenue generation opportunities. The score should be based on answers to the following 
questions: 


a. Will the proposed project require additional personnel to operate? 
b. Will the proposed project require additional annual maintenance? 
c. Will the proposed project require additional equipment not included in the project 


budget? 
d. Will the proposed project reduce staff time and City resources thereby resulting in a 


positive impact on the operational budget? 
e. Are there cost savings or revenue generation opportunities as a result of the efficiency 


of the proposed project?  
 
Scoring scale: 


 
0  2-3  5 


The project will 
have a negative 
impact on the 
budget. It will 
require additional 
money to operate 
 


 The project will not 
impact the operating 
budget as it is 
cost/revenue neutral 


 The project will have a 
positive impact on the 
budget. It will result in 
significant savings in 
staff time, materials, or 
offer revenue 
generation 


 







 


 
 


7. Quality of Life – Projects that provide widespread economic prosperity, recreational and 
cultural activities, environmental benefits, beautify Pinole, and attract new residents and 
visitors. The score should be based on answers to the following example questions: 


a. Does the proposed project help to create a beautiful and clean community? 
b. Does the proposed project encourage participation in recreational and cultural 


activities? 
c. Does the proposed project attract new residents, businesses, or visitors? 
d. Does the proposed project increase environmental stewardship? 
e. Does the proposed project contribute towards economic development and revitalization 


efforts? 


Scoring scale: 


 


0  2-3  5 
The project will 
not have an 
impact on the 
quality of life for 
the Pinole 
community 


 The project has 
moderate impact on the 
quality of life for the 
Pinole community 


 The project greatly 
impacts the quality 
of life for the Pinole 
community 


 


8. Grant Funding – The proposed project is partially or fully supported by grants from State or 
Federal funds. The percentage of total cost funded by an external source will determine the 
score in this category. 
 
Scoring scale: 


 
0 1 2 3 4 5 


0% - 16% 
External 
Funding 
 


17% - 33% 
External 
Funding 


34% - 
50% 
External 
Funding 


51% - 67% 
External 
Funding 


68% - 84% 
External 
Funding 


85% to 
100% 
External 
Funding 


 


9. Sustainability and Conservation – The proposed project furthers the City’s sustainability and 
conservation goals. The score should be based on answers to the following example 
questions: 


a. Does the proposed project improve the health of the community and natural 
environment through sustainable designs with improved air quality and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions that contribute to climate change? 


b. Does the proposed project increase use of active modes of transportation and reduces 
the need for auto-dependency? 


c. Does the proposed project incorporate design that meets or exceeds federal and State 
standards in the field of energy efficiency, such as State of California Title 24 Energy 
Efficiency Standards, LEED building standards, etc.? 







 


 
 


 
Scoring scale: 
 


0  2-3  5 
The project will not 
impact the City’s 
ability to achieve 
sustainability and 
conservation goals  


 The project will have a 
modest positive impact 
on the City’s ability to 
achieve sustainability 
and conservation goals  


 The project will have 
a significant positive 
impact on the City’s 
ability to achieve 
sustainability and 
conservation goals  


 


 


 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





		Front Page

		Item D1

		Item E1

		Item G1








